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Chairman’s Report

TRHES

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Crown International Corporation Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”), I am pleased to
present the final results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March
2019 (“Current Year”).

As of 31 March 2019, the total assets of the Group reached approximately
HKS$3,270 million, and the profit attributable to the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) for the Current Year was approximately HK$3.8
million, representing a significant decrease as compared to approximately
HK$108.7 million of the financial year ended 31 March 2018 (“Last Year”).
Such decrease was mainly attributable to a one-off extraordinary gain on
bargain purchase from the acquisition of the holding company of Weihai
property amounting to HK$116.0 million in the Last Year, while no similar

gain had been recorded in the Current Year.

In the Current Year, the Group is principally engaged in the businesses of
property investment, property development, hotel operations and financial

consultancy service in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Sino-US trade issues were initiated by the United States in the middle
of last year. Although both sides have undergone several rounds of serious
negotiations to date, there is still no clear sign of resolution. The resulting
substantial volatility in the financial market recently has greatly reduced
investors’ risk appetite, forcing them to turn to safe-haven assets. The
domestic economy has also been affected by the Sino-US trade issues.
The domestic GDP growth has shown signs of slowing down, and the
consumption and investment sentiments of general residents have also
declined, which will cool down the domestic real estate market in the
short term. However, as the PRC has a large population and the average
households are moving towards a well-off society, the rigid demand for
housing of residents has long existed and the real estate market always have

its grounds for development.
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All the three major investment properties of the Group, namely 2 853
in Zhongshan, K. K& in Yingkou and Jinggangshan hotel in Jiangxi,
had been leased out, and we had signed long-term leases with tenants for
a period ranging from nine to fifteen years, ensuring the long-term rental

income.

The Group’s property development project Golden Beach No. 1 Project
(the “Golden Beach No. 1 Project”) located in Weihai, Shandong, the PRC
is expected to be completed in full in or about the fourth quarter of 2020.
The Golden Beach No. 1 Project will have a total of approximately 195,000
square metres of the gross floor area with over 1,600 apartment suites and
360 car parking spaces. Among which, approximately 130,000 square metres

of the gross floor area will be available for sale as serviced apartments.

According to a report issued by the independent valuer engaged by the
Group, based on (among other things) the current property price levels in
Weihai, the aggregate market value of these serviced apartments is expected
to be approximately RMB1.68 billion assuming they have been completed
at the current stage. The appraisal value of the remaining hotel and related
retail premises and car-parking spaces reaches approximately RMBO0.573
billion assuming they have been completed at the current stage. The Group
believes that the Weihai Property will become a new source of income and

generate stable cash flow for the Group soon.

The Group is actively studying the possibility of exploring new businesses in
the future. By realising the aging population problem in the PRC, the Group
regards the comprehensive healthcare sector as one of its major targets for
future development. The Group is currently identifying professional teams
in this sector. It expects to cooperate with such teams in providing planning,
research, establishment, staff training and other preliminary works as well as
the post-establishment management services to operators who are interested
in the comprehensive healthcare business. I believe that the comprehensive
healthcare business will provide the Group with another sustainable business

development opportunity.
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Chairman’s Report (continued)

FRHES @

The Group creates long-term value based on its prudent and sound
governance principles and risk management. It has laid a solid foundation
for its long-term development by continuously ensuring asset quality
and financial resources. With its reliable risk management, it will be
able to grasp every opportunity and cope with the ever-changing market
environment flexibly. Building on its effective risk control, it is also carefully
planning for its future, actively expanding its operation and striving for new

business opportunities.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity to extend our
utmost gratitude to our valued clients, Shareholders and all of the business
associates for their continued support for and confidence in the Group.
I also wish to express our sincere appreciation to our management and

employees as a whole for their positive efforts over the past years.

HUNG Man

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Introduction

During the Current Year, the Group was principally engaged in the business
of property investment, property development, hotel operations, and

financial consultancy services in the PRC.

Property investment

The Group’s current investments in investment properties consist of the

following:

. The commercial building known as HMBKE in Yingkou city,
Liaoning province, the PRC (the “Yingkou Property”);

e The hotel complex in Jinggangshan city, Jiangxi province, the PRC
(the “Jinggangshan Property”); and

e The residential and commercial complex known as 2B ZE in
Zhongshan city, Guangdong province, the PRC (the “Zhongshan
Property”).

Property development

The Group’s current investment in property development comprises
approximately 1,400 serviced apartment units in Weihai city, Shandong
province, the PRC (the “Weihai Property”) currently under development
and to be sold by the Group.

Hotel operations

The Group’s current investments in hotel operations consist of the hotel

development in Weihai city, Shandong province, the PRC.

The Group’s hotel operations comprise approximately 200 hotel suites in
the Weihai Property to be managed by a world-renowned hotel group as
hotel manager under the management agreement between the Group and the

said hotel group.

Financial consultancy services

Due to the economic slowdown in the PRC, the Group’s business of
providing financial consultancy services to property developers in the PRC

for financing recorded no revenue during the Current Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

E 12857 5@ A 731 ()

A. The Group’s Property Investment

(i)

The Yingkou Property

The Yingkou Property is a 16-storey commercial building situated
in Yingkou city, Liaoning province, the PRC. The gross floor
area of the Yingkou Property is approximately 10,740 square
metres, and is owned by PREGERE (1) 35S HARA T
(“U” Inns (Yingkou) Hotel Management Corporation Limited*)
(the “Yingkou Subsidiary”), a subsidiary of the Company. The
Yingkou Subsidiary entered into two separate lease agreements in

relation to the Yingkou Property.

In September 2010, the Yingkou Subsidiary as lessor entered into
a lease agreement with a bank as lessee in relation to the second
to fourth floors, as well as part of the ground floor area, of the
Yingkou Property. The lease was for ten years, with an annual
rental of RMB1.68 million for the first five years and an annual

rental of RMB1.764 million for the remaining five years.

In November 2013, the Yingkou Subsidiary as lessor entered into
a lease agreement with a local lessee in relation to the fifth to
sixteenth floors, as well as part of the ground floor area, of the
Yingkou Property. The lease was for nine years, with an initial
annual rental of RMB1.2 million for the first three years of the
lease. The annual rental shall increase by 6% after the expiration
of each three year period after the commencement date of the

lease.

The Yingkou Property is currently fully occupied due to the
abovementioned two leases. The Group considers that the
operations of the Yingkou Property has entered a stable stage. The
Group does not expect any material change to the operation of
the Yingkou Property for the duration of the current leases until

2020 and 2022 respectively.

*  For identification purpose only

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

(ii) The Jinggangshan Property

The Jinggangshan Property is a hotel complex situated in
Jinggangshan City, Jiangxi province, the PRC. The hotel complex

has a gross floor area of approximately 9,600 square metres.

In June 2017, the Group entered into a lease agreement over
the Jinggangshan Property with a local lessee for a period of
ten years (which commenced on 8 December 2017, after the
expiry of a customary rent-free period of six months) until 7
December 2027. Under the terms of the lease agreement, the
local lessee shall operate hotel businesses in the hotel complex.
The local lessee undertook to renovate and maintain the hotel
complex, and to ensure that the post-renovation complementary
facilities achieve 3-Star or above in accordance with relevant
PRC standards. The lessee undertook to pay not less than
RMB10 million in renovation expenditures, and the Group shall
subsequently reimburse the renovation expenditures of up to

RMB10 million over the term of the lease.

The renovation work arranged by the local lessee has been
completed, and the hotel complex operated by the tenant has
commenced its operations. Accordingly, the Group’s business
operations of the Jinggangshan Property have also entered a stable
stage. The Group does not expect any material change to the
operation of the Jinggangshan Property for the duration of the

current lease until 2027.

The Group believes this business model will not only help the
Group generate stable rental income, but also improve the cash
flow of the Group by spreading the renovation expenses borne by

the Group over the term of the lease.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

E 12857 5@ A 731 ()

(iii) The Zhongshan Property

The Zhongshan Property is a multi-purpose complex comprising
retail floors on the lower levels and commercial and residential
floors on the upper levels. In 2015, the Group acquired the
Zhongshan Property for investment purposes. When the
acquisition was completed, the Group was of the view that the
commercial and residential floors of the Zhongshan Property were
suitable for use as economy hotels and serviced apartments, while
the retail floors were suitable for leasing to tenants operating

retail and catering businesses.

Due to the consistently rising property market in Zhongshan
city since 2015, the Zhongshan Property recorded a substantial
accumulated increase in market value since its acquisition by
the Group based on the revaluation on the Zhongshan Property
undertaken by an independent property valuer engaged by the

Group.

The Group’s management observed that the price level of the
residential properties in Zhongshan kept climbing at a moderate
rate in the second half of the financial year 2018/19. The Group’s
management believed that such increase was attributable to the
following factors: (i) the State Council’s “Government Work
Report” in 2017 officially proposed to study and formulate the
development plan for Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area (the “Greater Bay Area”), signifying the construction
of the Greater Bay Area as a formal national strategy thereby;
(ii) the recently opened Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge
(the “Bridge”), the world’s longest sea-crossing bridge-and-
tunnel channels, reduces commuting time between Hong Kong,
Zhuhai and Macau to roughly one hour, and is open 24-hours
for border crossing. The opening of the Bridge has greatly
enhanced the synergies among the cities within the Greater Bay
Area in terms of circulation of goods, interaction of services,

personnel movement and the free flow of information; (iii) the
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

recent development of the Shenzhen-Zhongshan bridge and the
Zhongshan metro, which is expected to shorten the commuting
time from Zhongshan to Shenzhen and Foshan respectively upon
their completion; and (iv) the current average price per square
metre of properties in Zhuhai, which is adjacent to Zhongshan,
remain much higher than that of Zhongshan. Based on the
abovementioned external factors, the Group’s management
believes that the selling price and leasing level of the residential
properties in Zhongshan will sustain a stable and moderate

growth.

On 15 November 2018, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with a local lessee in respect of the retail floors and
car parking spaces of the Zhongshan Property for a term of 10
years commencing from 15 August 2019 (after the expiry of
a customary rent-free period of nine months) untl 14 August

2029.

On 29 March 2019, the Group and the lessee agreed to
terminate the previous lease agreement and enter into a new
lease agreement. Pursuant to the new lease agreement, the entire
Zhongshan Property including the residential units, the retail
floors and car parking spaces were leased to the lessee for a term
of 15 years commencing from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2034.
The first 9 months from 1 April 2019 is a rent-free period. The
initial annual rent is RMB33.0 million for the first three years of
the lease commencing from 1 January 2020. The annual rental
shall increase by 3.5% after the expiration of each three year
period from 1 January 2020. Any renovation plan proposed by
the lessee must obtain prior approval from the Group and the cost

of renovation will be borne by the lessee.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

E 12857 5@ A 731 ()

B. The Group’s investment in Property Development

The Weihai Property

The Group’s management observed that Weihai has become an
increasingly popular destination for the retired population in recent
years which, coupled with the rapid growth of the tourism sector, has
resulted in a consistent influx of migrants and an increased demand for
properties. The Group’s management considered such development in
Weihai will continue to benefit its hotel industry and local property
market. In light of the above, the Group’s management resolved in
Last Year that approximately 130,000 square metres of the gross floor
area of the Weihai Property shall be renovated and sold as serviced

apartments.

B BB R 26 PR A H] (“Weihai Runhe”), an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, obtained the Commodity Housing
Pre-sale Permit in the third quarter of 2018, after which pre-sale of the

serviced apartments of Weihai Property started.

As at the date of this report, the total pre-sales by Weihai Runhe
amounted to approximately RMB140 million, and the total saleable
area pre-sold is approximately 11,000 square metres. The relevant pre-
sale amounts are expected to be recognised as revenue in the financial
year 2020/21, as the construction and renovation works of the serviced
apartment units are currently expected to be completed in the fourth

quarter of 2020.

Financing of development of the Weihai Property

It is expected that the preliminary initial costs (excluding the land
costs which was paid by the Group through acquisition of the offshore
holding company of the PRC company for development of the
Weihai Property) for development of the Weihai Property will amount
to roughly RMB1.0 billion. Part of the Group’s plan to finance
the development of the Weihai Property is pre-sale of the serviced

apartment units as disclosed above.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

To finance the construction and renovation costs of the Weihai
Property, prior to entering the Group, Weihai Runhe through
China Everbright Bank, entered into an entrusted loan agreement
with a subsidiary of China HKBridge Holdings Limited (“China
HKBridge”), under which Weihai Runhe obtained a loan facility of
the aggregate principal amount of RMB150 million, bearing interest at

18% per annum and repayable on 24 July 2019.

On 9 November 2018, Weihai Runhe entered into an entrusted debt
investment agreement (the “Asia Alliance Asset Loan”) with o g
BEEMHARA, through Harbin Bank Tianjin Branch, pursuant
to which Weihai Runhe obtained a loan facility of RMB660 million
(equivalent to HK$772 million) for a term of 3 years, bearing interest
at 6.6% per annum. The final drawdown amount was RMB500
million (equivalent to HK$584.6 million) with the remaining facility
amount lapsed. The Asia Alliance Asset Loan replaced the loan from
China HKBridge, which bore interest at 18% per annum. The Group’s
management believes that substantial interest expenses will be saved
through the replacement of China HKBridge loan which was of a high
interest rate, thus lowering the construction finance costs of the Weihai
Property. Meanwhile, the Asia Alliance Asset Loan will provide the
Group with sufficient liquidity, improving the chance for the Group to

secure the Golden Beach No.1 — Phase II Projects.

The Group’s management considered that the Weihai Property would
be sufficiently financed through (i) the cash flow generated by pre-
sale of the serviced apartments; (ii) loan facility agreements such as the
abovementioned loan facilities and (iii) other capital arrangements as

may be entered into by the Group from time to time.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

E 12857 5@ A 731 ()

C. The Group’s Hotel Operations

The Weihai Property

The Weihai Property consists of three high rise hotel buildings with a
total gross floor area of approximately 195,000 square metres, which is
expected to provide about 1,400 serviced apartment suites, 200 hotel
suites and rooms, and about 360 car parking spaces. Construction and
renovation works commenced in April 2016 and is currently expected
to be completed in or about the fourth quarter of 2020. The main
building of the Weihai Property is expected to stand approximately
149.8 metres in height, making it a landmark along the Golden Beach
in Weihai. It is also expected to be the highest building in Weihai.

When the Group completed the acquisition of the Weihai Property
in September 2017, it acquired, along with the Weihai Property, the
benefit of a management agreement with a world-renowned hotel
group as hotel manager. Under the said management agreement, the
hotel manager will, among other things, provide certain consultancy,
design and monitoring services in the course of the development of
the hotel floors, and manage the operation of the hotel premises after
completion of the development. The hotel is expected to achieve
5-star international standard and target high-end business and leisure

travelers.

The hotel complex is under construction at the moment. Upon
completion of the construction and renovation works (expected to be
in the fourth quarter of 2020), the hotel is expected to provide about

200 luxury suites and rooms.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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D. The Group’s Financial Consultancy Services D. ACHE B Z 4 i i IR

The US-China trade war initiated by the United States led to a H 5 1 88 2 = v 5 B 5 B | R P 8
sustained slowdown in the economy of the PRC. The business of the FrBUBR - AR BB BB WA
provision of financial consultancy services to the real estate developers 2 I M B % T 1 At < vl R ) IR B 2 2
in need of financing, which was the main service provided by the BEAEASE PER K250 B - R BB AE A
Group under this segment in the past, was also greatly affected in the A B SR AT AT WA o SR - AR 4 R A
Current Year and thus did not record any revenue for the Current B Py T 35 T8 0 05 4K LK - R 2R T R
Year. However, the Group believes that the domestic market potential EEM R AR AE S B A PR B
is still huge and it may adjust its operating model in the future to A < BT P PR 25 - o 2 % U Al A 3
not only focus on providing financial consultancy services to real BERME V& WRe I 158 > 1
estate developers, but to also build more financing platforms for JnAE B Ty 1 SE R Z WA o

other companies with a view to capturing market opportunities and

generating increased income therefrom.

FINANCIAL REVIEW $U4 5 Il
Key Performance Indicators R RBIME

For the year ended
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BE=H=+—H
LAEER=ZA=+—H
2019 2018
it 2| 1K 3 —F—)N\4E
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Revenue We #5 5,371 4,995
Profit attributable to owners of the Company AR o w] AN AL i A 3,791 108,716
Earnings per share (HK Cent) A (HAD) 0.11 3.50
Gross assets MG 3,270,544 2,864,473
Net assets attributable to owners of A B N AL B
the Company 2,027,821 2,162,269
Cash and bank balances B4 B AT 167,073 43,585
Borrowings & & 598,046 160,000
Net borrowings/net assets attributable to FAE R ARAFHER A
owners of the Company JE A i B e 21.3% 5.4%
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Revenue

Revenue amounted to approximately HK$5.4 million for the Current Year,
which is similar to that of approximately HK$5.0 million for the Last Year.
The revenue was derived from the rental income of our two investment

properties, namely the Jinggangshan Property and the Yingkou Property.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses amounted to approximately HK$23.2 million for
the Current Year, representing an increase of approximately HK$5.3 million
or approximately 30% as compared to that of approximately HK$17.9
million for the Last Year. The increase in other operating expenses was
mainly attributable to the selling and marketing expenses of approximately
HKS$6.9 million incurred from the pre-sale of serviced apartment units of
Weihai Property in the Current Year, while there was no such expenses in

Last Year.

Finance costs

Finance costs amounted to approximately HK$0.9 million for the
Current Year, representing a decrease of approximately HK$1.0 million or
approximately 53% as compared to that of approximately HK$1.9 million
for Last Year. The decrease of finance costs was mainly attributable to the
decrease in imputed interest expenses amounting to approximately HK$1.4

million.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

For the Current Year, the Group recorded a net profit attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$3.8 million (Last Year: approximately
HK$108.7 million). The significant decline of profit attributable to owners
of the Company in the Current Year as compared to the Last Year was a one-
off bargain purchase gain of approximately HK$116.0 million arising from
the acquisition of the holding company of the Weihai Property development

project in Last Year, while no similar profit was recorded in the Current Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

For the Current Year, the Group’s sources of fund primarily included income
generated from business operations, loans and proceeds from issuance of
bonds, which were used in our business operations and investment and

development of projects.

The Group expects that income generated from business operations and
borrowings will continue to be the main sources of funds in the coming year.
Therefore, the Group will continue to strengthen cash flow management,
improve the efficiency of capital returns on projects and stringently control
the cost and various expenses. Besides, the Group will continue to look for
opportunities to cooperate with foreign and domestic investors, in order to
provide other sources of funding for the expansion of projects and business

development.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$167.1 million as compared to the bank balances and
cash of approximately HK$43.6 million as at 31 March 2018.

The Group had net current assets amounting to approximately HK$870.3
million as at 31 March 2019, against approximately HK$522.0 million as
at 31 March 2018. The Group’s current ratio (i.e. current assets divided by
current liabilities) was approximately 4.9 as at 31 March 2019 as compared

with approximately 6.0 as at 31 March 2018.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s net debt gearing ratio (i.e. net debt
divided by equity attributable to owners of the Company) was at a healthy
level of approximately 21.3% (31 March 2018: 5.4%). Net debt comprises

total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure of the Group for the Current Year included expenditure
on fixed assets and investment properties of approximately HK$38.0 million
(Last Year: approximately HK$40.1 million) and approximately HK$1.2
million (Last Year: approximately HK$7.8 million) respectively.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2019,

(a) the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities or

guarantees (31 March 2018: Nil); and

(b) the Group had operating lease commitments of approximately

HK$14.2 million (31 March 2018: approximately HK$16.1 million).

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s interests in the Weihai Property, and
the equity interests in a PRC subsidiary which control the Weihai Property
were pledged to an independent third party as security for borrowings with
outstanding amount of approximately RMB500.0 million (equivalent to

HK$584.6 million).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and is mainly responsible
for corporate financing and administration, and engaged in investment
holding. The business of the Company’s subsidiaries primarily involves
operations and investments in the PRC, with revenue and expenditure
denominated in Renminbi. If necessary, the Group will consider using
forward exchange contracts to hedge against foreign exchange exposures. The
main foreign exchange exposure is from Renminbi, however as both revenue
and expenditure of the Group’s business are dominated in Renminbi, the
Directors believe that the Group does not have significant foreign exchange

exposure.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

There was no material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and associated

companies by the Group for the Current Year.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the Group did not hold any
significant investments (31 March 2018: Nil).

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a total of 47 employees (31 March
2018: 45 employees), including executive Directors. The remuneration
and staff cost for the Current Year were approximately HK$14.7 million
(Last Year: approximately HK$14.1 million). The Group’s remuneration
policy and packages for the executive Directors and senior management
are determined by the remuneration, quality and nomination committee of
the Company while those for other employees were reviewed and approved
by the chief executive officer of the Company. The Group remunerates
its employees based on industry practice and the performance of each
individual. The Group also offers discretionary bonuses, medical insurance
and defined contribution retirement plans, and provides a share option

scheme for its employees and executive Directors.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The current principal businesses of the Group are property investment,
property development, hotel operations and provision of financial

consultancy services in the PRC.

The Group’s three important investment properties, namely %8 ZE5 in
Zhongshan, FHMRE in Yingkou and Jinggangshan hotel in Jiangxi, have
all been leased, with tenants signing long-term lease agreements ranging
from 9 to 15 years, which has locked in the long-term rental income and
avoided issues associated with seeking new tenants at the end of each short
term lease agreements and in the meantime, has guaranteed the stable cash
inflows of the Group for each year, thereby allowing the Group to focus on

developing other business with the bulk of its resources and energy.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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The Golden Beach Phase I located in Weihai, Shandong province is a key
project of the Group. Pre-sale of the apartment units commenced in the
third quarter of 2018. The Group expects ideal sales performance can be
achieved as the project features high quality apartment units situated in
a perfect location with the picturesque beach view and swimming in the
beach within reach. Currently, capping of the two apartment buildings has
completed, and the main construction has reached practical completion.
Planning of interior decoration is now underway, and the project is expected
to be completed and delivered in the fourth quarter of 2020. By then, the
Group will be able to recognise sales revenue from Golden Beach Phase I in
the financial year of 2020/21. The construction of the hotel block is now
up to the sixth floor, which is in line with expectations, and the hotel is
also expected to be completed and operations is about to commence in the
fourth quarter of 2020. The hotel portion of Golden Beach Phase I will be
managed by a world-renowned hotel management company and will become
a new landmark of Weihai city, Shandong province, securing the title of
the highest building and the first international five-star hotel of the city. In
addition, the Group is conducting market research on the project of Phase II
near Golden Beach Phase I Weihai and may continue with development of

the Phase II, expecting these two projects to create synergies.

Affected by the macro environment, our financial consultancy services was
not able to maintain its revenue level. In light of this, the Group is actively
exploring new businesses. While the domestic economic environment
develops, many families are moving towards moderate living standard, the
aging population problem is worsening. Aged people in PRC are increasingly
inclined to invest in health and lifestyle. The healthcare industry is also a
key industry heavily supported by the PRC government. The concept of
comprehensive healthcare will become an important goal of the Group’s
future development. Comprehensive healthcare includes provision of
preliminary planning, research, establishment, staff training and post-
establishment management services to healthcare operators. In order to
lay a solid foundation for the long run, the Group is now identifying
professional teams in these sectors to develop comprehensive healthcare
businesses through cooperation, Apart from such effort, the Group may also
turn properties under its ownership into healthcare centres in the future, in
order to operate its own healthcare services and building a dynamic business

model of “healthcare operation + property investment”.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

In the future, the Group will also enhance the development of its financial
consultancy services with the goal of building a financing platform for

healthcare operators.

The Group is fully confident in its future development.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is engaged in the businesses of property investment, property
development, hotel operations and financial consultancy services in the
PRC. Since the Group’s businesses are all operated in the PRC, changes
in the economic situation and policies in the PRC are the major risks and
uncertainties exposed to the Group. The real estate industry in the PRC
has been closely regulated by the Chinese government, and macroeconomic
control policies may be strengthen or loosened from time to time in short
or no notice, depending on the prevailing market conditions. Policies
on purchase and price restriction in various places are among the major
difficulties often encountered by real estate developers in the PRC. In
addition, in the PRC, especially real estate enterprises, bear heavy tax
burdens, such as land value-added tax, real estate tax, value-added tax and
corporate income tax. As a result, the changes in tax policies will have a
material impact on the Group. As the Group’s main assets are located in the
PRC, changes in the RMB exchange rate will also result in the significant
changes in the values of the Group’s total assets and net assets. Given the
macroeconomic environment in the PRC has been affected by the Sino-US
trade disputes in the past two years, uncertainties have been increasingly
prevalent and it would be difficult to predict possible future changes. The
annual growth of the PRC’s gross national product has also continued to
slow down in recent years. All of the abovementioned contributed to the

uncertainties to which the Group’s future operations is exposed.

In addition to the abovementioned risks and uncertainties, the Group’s
analysis on the credit risk and liquidity, interest rate risk and other price
risk, currency risk, market risk and financial risks is detailed in the relevant

notes relating to the financial instrument to the financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Current Year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws or regulations by
the Group that has a material adverse impact on the business and operations

of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees are its valuable assets. The Group’s
employee management focuses on recruiting and developing talents. Staff
performance is measured on a regular and structured basis to provide
employees with appropriate feedback and to ensure their alignment with the
Group’s corporate strategy. The Group also understands that maintaining
a good long-term relationship with business partners is one of its primary
objectives. Accordingly, the management has used its best endeavours to
maintain good communications, promptly exchanged ideas and shared
business updates with them when appropriate. During the Current Year,
there was no material or significant dispute between the Group and its

customers, suppliers and business partners.
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Executive Directors

Ms. HUNG Man, formerly known as Xiong Shu Min, (“Ms. Hung”),
Chairman of the Board (“Chairman”), chief executive officer (“CEQO”),
Chairman of the Executive Committee (“Executive Committee”) and
Member of the Remuneration, Quality and Nomination Committee
(“RQNC”) of the Company

Aged 50, Ms. Hung was appointed as an executive Director on 28
March 2019, and is also the Chairman of the Board, CEO, Chairman
of the Executive Committee and Member of the RQNC. She invested in
securities and real estate in Hong Kong in the 1990s. In 2012, Ms. Hung
acquired shares in Crown Landmark Corporation (“CLC” and, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Crown Landmark Group”) and participated in
the operations and management of the Crown Landmark Group, which
eventually acquired a controlling equity interest in the Company in 2014.
Under her management, the Crown Landmark Group expanded its various
operations, and she accumulated years of experience in operating a business

conglomerate.

Ms. Hung has substantial participation in non-profit and charitable
activities. She is currently serving as director of the Crown International
Foundation Limited, vice chairperson of the board of governors of the Hong
Kong Guangan Development and Promotion Association, and honorary
chairperson of the 14th term board of governors of the Hong Kong Alumni
Association of Huaqiao University. She was a director of each of the
38th term and the 39th term board of directors, and is currently the vice

chairperson of the 40th term board of directors, of Yan Oi Tong.
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Directors’ Biographies (continued)
SS[{N w

Mr. LI Yong Jun (“Mr. Li”), Vice Chairman of the Board and Member of
the Executive Committee

Aged 50, Mr. Li was appointed as an executive Director on 3 May 2018,
and is also a member of the Executive Committee. He holds a Master of
Business Administration in management from Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business, and holds the qualification of senior engineer in the
PRC. Mr. Li has over 20 years’ experience in enterprise strategic decision
making and corporate management. He is the president of Yong Xin Hua
Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (707 3 o2 I 4R 1B A PR 4 ] ) together with its
subsidiaries, the “YXHY Group”). The YXHY Group was founded by Mr.
Li in 2003 with its headquarters located in Beijing. The YXHY Group’s
major businesses cover industries real estate development, cultural tourism
investment, and internet big data services. Its business scope covers cultural
tourism real estate development, financial and real estate investment,
construction and operation of cultural experience parks, investment in
cultural and creative industries, internet big data services and art and finance
industry, etc. Under his leadership, the YXHY Group expanded into a

national diversified group.

Mr. Li is also the Asia chairman of the Global Hope Coalition (of which
the Director-General of UNESCO is the Honorary President), the vice
chairman of the China Industry University Research Collaboration
Association, and the vice chairman of the China Intangible Cultural

Heritage Protection Association.

Mr. LIU Hong Shen (“Mr. Liu”), Vice Chairman of the Board and
Member of the Executive Committee

Aged 59, Mr. Liu was appointed as a non-executive Director of the
Company (a “NED”) on 27 May 2014 and also appointed as the vice
Chairman of the Board on 2 July 2014. He was re-designated as an
executive Director on 1 November 2015 and is a member of the Executive
Committee. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in Chinese Literature from

Yunnan University in China.

As an entrepreneur, Mr. Liu has many years of experience in commerce,
especially in real estate development in both residential and commercial
properties. He and his business partners have invested in and developed both

residential and commercial properties.
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Directors’ Biographies (continued)

Mr. MENG Jin Long (“Mr. Meng”), Member of the Executive Committee
Aged 34, Mr. Meng was appointed as a NED on 27 May 2014. He was re-
designated as an executive Director on 19 September 2014 and is a member
of each of the Executive Committee and the RQNC. Mr. Meng was further
appointed as the Chairman and the chairman of the Executive Committee
during the period from 31 March 2015 to 27 March 2019. He was the CEO
during the period from 31 March 2015 to 6 October 2016. He obtained a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from Jing Qiao University in

China.

Mr. Meng joined the Crown Landmark Group in May 2012. Before
joining the Crown Landmark Group, he was a sales manager at a real estate
investment company in Beijing. Mr. Meng assisted in land and property
development, shopping mall leasing and management and managed the sale

and lease of several real estate projects.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LONG Tao (“Mr. Long”), Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Member of the RQNC

Aged 66, Mr. Long was appointed as an independent Non-executive
Director of the Company (an “INED”) on 27 May 2014 and is the
chairman of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
and a member of the RQNC. He graduated from Research Institute for
Fiscal Science, the Ministry of Finance, majoring in accounting. He holds a

master’s degree in Economics.

Mr. Long is currently the chairman of Beijing Haiwen Venture Capital,
Ltd., an independent non-executive director of each of Qingling Motors
Company Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1122), UBS SDIC Fund Management Company
Limited, Beijing Whoswho Culture and Media Company Limited, Beijing
Wangfujing Group Company, Limited (b B HEE R A RAF) ,
a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock

code: 600859) and Aimer Company Limited ( B 5B 40 A R )
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Directors’ Biographies (continued)
SS[{N w

Mr. Long has extensive knowledge and experience in corporate finance,
accounting, audit, asset appraisal, enterprise restructuring and listing. Mr.
Long had served as an associate professor at the Accountancy Division of
Central University of Finance and Economics, and the New York office of
KPMG Peat Marwick. He had acted as a member of the Securities Issue and
Approval Committee of the China Securities Regulatory Commission and
a member of the Chinese Accounting Expert Panel for China-Hong Kong

Securities Team.

Mr. REN Guo Hua (“Mr. Ren”), Chairman of the RQNC and Member of
the Audit Committee

Aged 63, Mr. Ren was appointed as an INED on 27 May 2014 and is
the chairman of the RQNC and a member of the Audit Committee. He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in English and American literature from East

China Normal University.

Mr. Ren is currently the senior advisor of StormHarbour Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited. He has many years of experience in financial investment
products. Mr. Ren served in various global financial institutions and has
many years of experience in international banking and investment market.
He was a managing director of Greater China Origination in StormHarbour
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and the general manager of Sinolink
Financial Leasing Company Limited. Before that, Mr. Ren was a managing
director and head of capital markets of China region in Standard Chartered
Bank Hong Kong and had made valuable contributions to the Debt and
Fixed Income business for the bank. In his earlier career, he also served
in Commonwealth Bank of Australia Hong Kong, Fleet National Bank
Shanghai Representative Office, True Stand Investments Limited (Hong

Kong), Bear Stearns and Bank of China.
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Directors’ Biographies (continued)

Mr. CHEN Fang (“Mr. Chen”), Member of the Audit Committee and
Member of the RQNC

Aged 60, Mr. Chen was appointed as an INED on 27 May 2014 and is a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the RQNC. He obtained a
graduate degree in Technical Economy from Harbin Institute of Technology

in China.

Mr. Chen is currently the president of Beijing GZT Network Technology
Inc. He has many years of experience in corporate governance as well as
enterprise development and restructuring. Mr. Chen has also established
a valuable network in the business communities. He was the Dean of
the Institute of IT and Social Development Research of the Chongging

Technology and Business University.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXEGHS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

The Board presents this corporate governance report for inclusion in the
Company’s annual report for the Current Year and up to the date of this

annual report.

While focusing on its business development with full force, the Company
places great effort in upholding its corporate governance standards as we
believe good corporate governance is an important component in striving for

the highest returns to the Shareholders.

The Company’s principles of corporate governance emphasise on a quality
Board, sound internal controls, independence, transparency of information
and accountability to all stakeholders. Both the Board and the Group’
s management are committed to continuously improving corporate
governance practices and an ethical corporate culture as the intrinsic value of

the Company.

The Company is maintaining a high standard of corporate governance with
a view to enhancing the management of the Company as well as preserving
the interest of its Shareholders as a whole. The Company has complied with
the applicable code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) and Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), except the deviations with respect to Code Provision

A.2.1 of the CG Code as further explained below.

THE BOARD

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises a total of seven
Directors, being four executive Directors and three INEDs. The list of
Directors is set out in the section headed “Report of the Directors” of this
annual report. The Company has also maintained on its website and on the
Stock Exchange’s website an updated list of the Directors identifying their

role and function and whether they are INEDs.

The Board is committed to maintaining a balanced composition in terms
of its diversity of experience, expertise and independence. The Directors’
biographical information is set out in the section headed “Directors’

Biographies” on pages 23 to 27 of this annual report.

Each Director gives sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group.
All Directors are required to disclose to the Company at the time of their
appointment and annually the number and the nature of offices held in
public companies or organizations and other significant commitments with

an indication of the time involved.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Save for those as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Biographies”
of this annual report, the Board members do not have any other financial,

business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each other.

Directors’ continuing professional development

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, the Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The purpose of the code provision is to get
the Directors involved in the Board with an awareness of contribution
thereto. Directors are continually updated on the latest development
of the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practice. During the
Current Year, all Directors, have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by ways of reading materials relevant
to the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
All Directors have been required to provide the Company their records of

training received for the Current Year.

Board diversity policy

The Board adopted the board diversity policy on 4 September 2013
which sets out the approaches to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. Further, the Company sees
increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and sustainable development. In
designing the Board’s composition, board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. All the Directors’ appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against the objective criteria, having due

regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises seven members
coming from various professional backgrounds including property
development, accounting and corporate governance, etc. The Board is of
the view that the current Board has provided a good balance of skills and
experience to the Company and will continue to review its composition

from time to time.

The board diversity policy is posted on the website of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EXEBRS @

Directors’ nomination and appointment

Since April 2006, the Company has adopted the “Procedures on Directors’
Nomination, Appointment and Re-appointment” which sets out the
procedures, processes and criteria to select and recommend candidates for

directorship.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”), the Board is empowered to appoint a Director to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Shareholders (being two or
more Shareholders together holding not less than ten per cent. of the entire
issued shares of the Company) are empowered to nominate candidates for
directorship and subject to Shareholders” approval at the general meeting of
the Company. The RQNC can also nominate candidates for directorship for
appointment by the Board. Any Director appointed by the Board during the
year shall hold office until the next annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”) and be eligible for re-election.

The determination of the emoluments of Directors is based on the duties
and responsibilities of the individual Director by reference to the prevailing

market conditions.

The Company has purchased directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for

all Directors.

Remuneration of Directors

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Current Year are set out in

Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Board practices

The Board holds meetings regularly at least four times a year. Additional
meetings will be arranged, if and when required. All Directors are given
opportunities to include matters in the meeting agenda. Generally, notice
of at least 14 days is given for a regular Board meeting. Reasonable notice
will be given for all other Board meetings. Minutes are kept by the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) and available for
inspection by the Directors. Directors have separate and independent access
to the Company’s senior management, and full and unrestricted access to
relevant information in a timely manner with appropriate information in
such form and of such quality as will enable them to make an informed
decision and discharge their duties and responsibilities. The Board ensures
that Directors are provided with sufficient resources in the furtherance of
their duties as Board/committee members, including access to independent

professional advice, if necessary, at the Company’s expense.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

During the Current Year, ten physical Board meetings were held and the

attendance record is set out below:

Directors

o

Ms. HUNG Man' e &+
M. LI Yong Jun? 2K HL A A2
Mr. LIU Hong Shen BIAL S A
Mr. MENG Jin Long e e A
Mr. LONG Tao HE 9 B A
Mr. REN Guo Hua EREE 3
Mr. CHEN Fang Bl S 2
Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon? M e Azs
Dr. WONG Hoi Kin* G R

! appointed on 28 March 2019

2

appointed on 3 May 2018
> resigned on 28 March 2019
4 appointed on 9 July 2018 and resigned on 28 March 2019

*  The 2018 AGM held on 7 September 2018.

Independence

The Company believes that independence brings unbiased judgment and
conscience in decision making. The Board currently comprises three INEDs.
One of the INEDs possesses accounting expertise as required under Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Board received from each INED a written
confirmation of his independence and was satisfied with his independence as

required by the Listing Rules.

According to article 133 of the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors who served longest on the Board since they were last elected, shall
retire but shall be eligible for re-election at the AGM. Pursuant to code
provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, every Director shall retire by rotation at
least once every three years. The Board will ensure that each Director shall
retire by rotation in the above manner in order to comply with the code

provisions of the CG Code.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EXEBRS @

According to article 133 of the Articles of Association, a Director appointed
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board is subject to re-election

by Shareholders at the first AGM after his/her appointment.

Any re-election of an INED who has served the Board for more than
nine years, should be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by

Shareholders.

Relationship

All the Directors do not have any financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationship with one another.

Chairman and CEO

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. After the appointment of Ms. HUNG Man as an
executive Director, the Chairman and the CEO on 28 March 2019, she
has served as both the Chairman and the CEO, such practice deviates from
the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. By taking into the account the
current circumstances of the Group as a whole, the Board considers Ms.
HUNG Man, being a key leader of the Group, as a suitable candidate to be
the CEO, ensuring consistent direction with the Group and enables more
effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board
will consider splitting the roles of Chairman and CEO at a time when it
is appropriate. Therefore, the Board believes that the deviation from the
Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code is applicable in such circumstance.
Also, under the supervision of the Executive Committee which is comprised
of four executive Directors, the Board is appropriately structured with a
balance of power to provide sufficient checks to protect the interest of the

Company and the Sharcholders.

Independent non-executive Directors

Each of the INEDs has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of three years. The term of office is subject to retirement by

rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association and

the CG Code.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

As equal Board members, the INEDs give the Board and the Board
committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise and
various backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and
active participation. They make positive contributions to the development of
the Company’s strategy and policies through independent, constructive and

informed comments.

Their attendance to Board, Board committee and general meetings are

disclosed in other parts of this Corporate Governance Report.

The INEDs are identified in all corporate communications that disclose the

names of Directors.

Matters reserved for the Board

The Company’s “Guideline on Division of the Roles of the Board and the
Management” has set out clearly the roles of the Board and the Group’s

management.

Matters reserved for the Board include long term objectives and commercial
strategies, corporate and capital structures, financial reporting and controls,
internal controls, material contracts, communications, Board memberships,
remuneration, delegation of authority, corporate governance matters and

policy setting.

The Group’s management is mainly responsible for the execution of the
business plans, strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to

it from time to time.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including the Executive
Committee, the Audit Committee and the RQNC and delegated authority
to them for overseeing certain aspects of the Company’s affairs. There are
clear written terms of reference for the Board committees. Reports of the

Board committee meetings are presented to the Board regularly.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EXEBRS @

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all the executive Directors. As at the
date of this annual report, the Executive Committee is chaired by Ms.
HUNG Man and the members are Mr. LI Yong Jun, Mr. LIU Hong Shen
and Mr. MENG Jin Long .

The Executive Committee is delegated to be responsible for the day-to-
day management, administration and operation of the Company and its
principal duties are clearly set out in its terms of reference. The delegated

functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the INEDs who possess appropriate
business, legal, engineering and financial experience and skills to undertake
the review of financial statements in accordance with good practice
of financial reporting. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. LONG Tao and the members are Mr. REN
Guo Hua and Mr. CHEN Fang.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were revised on 31 March
2016 to reflect the additional responsibility of the Audit Committee
arising from the Stock Exchange’s amendments to risk management and
internal control under the CG Code applicable to listed companies with an

accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

The Audit Committee’s main duties, among others, are as follows:

(1) to recommend to the Board the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the independent auditor of the Company (the
“Independent Auditor”), and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the Independent Auditor, and deal with any

questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(2) to review and monitor the Independent Auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with

applicable standards;

(3) to discuss with the Independent Auditor on the nature and scope of the

audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

(4) to develop and implement a policy on engaging Independent Auditor

for the provision of non-audit services;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

to monitor the integrity of financial statements and to review the
annual report, interim report and financial statements and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained therein, before

submission to the Board;

to review financial control, risk management and internal control

systems;

to discuss the internal control system with the Group’s management to
ensure that the Group’s management has performed its duty to have an
effective control system, including the adequacy of the resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the

; . . . .
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

to ensure co-ordination between the internal auditors and the

Independent Auditors;

to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and

monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Independent Auditor’s management letters, any material
queries raised by the Independent Auditor to the Group’s management
about accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and

) ,
the Group’s management’s response; and

to report to the Board on the matters in code provision C.3.3 of the

CG Code.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EXEBRS @

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the Current Year and the

attendance record is set out below:

Directors

o

Mr. LONG Tao [N e
Mr. REN Guo Hua AT [ 38 S A
Mr. CHEN Fang Bl 5t A

Representatives of the Independent Auditor attended both

meetings

The main works performed by the Audit Committee during the Current
Year included the review of the Independent Auditor’s audit plan, the review
of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 and
interim financial statements for the six months ended 30 September 2018
with recommendation to the Board for approval. It has also reviewed the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control system, approved the internal
audit report and reviewed and recommended the appointment and re-

appointment of the Independent Auditor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited consolidated
results for the Current Year, including the accounting principles and practice
adopted by the Group and recommended to the Board for consideration.
The Audit Committee has also recommended the re-appointment of BDO

Limited (“BDO”) as the Independent Auditor at the forthcoming AGM.

RQNC

The RQNC comprises all the INEDs and one executive Director. As at the
date of this annual report, the RQNC is chaired by Mr. REN Guo Hua and
the members are Ms. HUNG Man, Mr. LONG Tao and Mr. CHEN Fang.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The terms of reference of the RQNC were revised on 1 January 2019 which
are available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
Its principal duties are to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management, and to draw up procedures for formulating an incentive-based
remuneration policy. The RQNC is authorised by the Board to determine,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management, and is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on remuneration of NEDs. No Director or

any of his associates will be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The RQNC is also responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board at least annually, assessing the performance of
the executive Directors, assessing the independence of INEDs, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, determining the
policy for the nomination of the Directors, and make recommendations to

the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

In determining the Company’s remuneration policy, the RQNC considers,
among other things, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in

the Group.

The RQNC also reviews and approves compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure it is consistent with contractual terms or is otherwise

fair and not excessive.

The Company provides the RQNC with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. Where necessary, the RQNC will engage independent professional

advice at the Company’s expense.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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During the Year, the RQNC held five meetings and the attendance record is

set out below:

Directors

#HE

Mr. REN Guo Hua T 5] %2 55 A
Ms. HUNG Man' e £t
Mr. MENG Jin Long? e e A2
Mr. LONG Tao [
Mr. CHEN Fang B e

! appointed on 28 March 2019
2 ceased to act on 28 March 2019

The main works performed by the RQNC during the Current Year
included review of the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations on the appointment and re-appointment of Directors and

the assessment of the independence of INEDs.
Pursuant to Code Provision of B.1.5 of the CG Code, the emoluments of

the members of the senior management of the Group by bands is set out

below:

Remuneration Bands

5 T 4 50
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 70
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7G £ 2,000,0003 7C
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EXREBRS @

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE EFHh

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility to maintain a good R R DB A AR SRR AR
standard of corporate governance practices and business ethics within the 2 R S A I A LA R SR AR
Group under the terms of reference of the corporate governance function. MR B B AT K F: o

Corporate governance functions 1 3R 4% iR Wk g

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate HREAHEEARNF ZAEERBOR KR
governance of the Company, and performing the corporate governance TSR E IR - B4 -

duties including:

(1) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on (1) HIFT R ARAT ZAEERBOR R

corporate governance; %ﬁn 3

(2) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional (2) MW ARERFERELEREEANBZE
development of the Directors and senior management; B EEsE:

(3) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in (3) AR I A B A e B AR A ]
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; ZBUR T 5

(4) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance 4) WET - MR REREH R EE AFEF
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and B KA AT () s &

(5) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure (5) MEEAA R AT IR TR 2 B %
in the Corporate Governance Report as required under the Listing BRI E 2 A SR R Z DR
Rules. Ho
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Securities Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having been made specific enquiries by
the Company, the Directors have confirmed compliance with the Securities

Code in their securities transactions during the Current Year.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
were audited by BDO whose term of office will expire at the conclusion
of the forthcoming AGM. The Audit Committee has recommended to the
Board that BDO be nominated for re-appointment as the Independent
Auditor at the forthcoming AGM.

BDO provides an annual audit assurance on the Company’s financial
statements. It is the responsibility of the Independent Auditor to form an
independent opinion, based on its audit, on the financial statements and
to report its opinion solely to the members, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”). The Audit Committee is obliged
to ensure continuing Independent Auditor’s objectivity and safeguard

independence.

For the Current Year, audit services fee amounted to approximately

HKS$1.35 million. No non-audit services were provided by the auditor.

DIRECTORS’ AND INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period to ensure that such financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
results and cash flows for that period. The Company’s financial statements
are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;

and that judgment and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.

BDO, the Independent Auditor, has presented its responsibilities in the
Independent Auditor’s Report in respect of the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the Current Year as set out on pages 70 to 76 of this

annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for internal controls and reviewing
its effectiveness. Policies and procedures are in place to ensure that assets
are adequately protected against unauthorised use or disposal and that the
interests of Shareholders are safeguarded. The systems in place are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance

against material misstatement or loss.

The Board maintains an organizational structure with clearly defined levels
of responsibility and authority and appropriate reporting procedures. The
Board meets regularly and has a schedule of matters that are brought to it for
decision in order that effective control over strategic, financial, operational

and compliance issues can be maintained.

To enable the Company to discharge its annual review responsibilities
pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Company has
reviewed the need for an internal audit function and considered it
appropriate to continue with the practice of outsourcing the internal audit
functions. Accordingly, the Company has engaged an external professional
internal control consultant firm, SHINEWING Risk Services Limited
(“SHINEWING”), to provide internal audit services to the Group on an

annual basis.

SHINEWING has conducted evaluation and tests in connection with the

following management’s assertions for the Current Year:
(1) the system of internal control of the Group is effective;
(2) the risk management process of the Group is effective; and

(3) effective internal controls are maintained to safeguard the Group’s

assets.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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SHINEWING also formulates the annual internal audit plan and
procedures, conducts periodic independent reviews on the operations of
each division to identify any irregularities and risks, develops action plans
and makes recommendations to address the identified risks, and report to
the Audit Committee on any key findings and progress of the internal audit
process. The Audit Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material

issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

In strict compliance with the requirements of code provision C.2.1 of the
CG Code, the Directors keep reviewing the internal control system of the
Group and further improve the system with respect to financial control,
operational control, compliance control and risk management on top of the
comprehensive review of the internal control system conducted under the
guidance of the Board. In addition, this review also considers the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.
The Board considers the risk management and internal control systems are

effective and adequate.

The Company will continue, where necessary, to improve its internal control

system and strengthen its risk management capability.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar was appointed by the Board as the Company
Secretary with effect from 28 March 2019.

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board, and all Directors have
access to the Company Secretary, for ensuring that the Board procedures,
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. The Company Secretary
is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised of the

relevant corporate governance developments relating to the Group.

The Company Secretary complied with the professional training

requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The general meetings shall be convened by the Directors on the requisition

of Shareholders pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance.

The Directors are required to call a general meeting if the Company has
received requests to do so from Shareholders representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at
general meetings. A request must state the general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the meeting, and may include the text of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
Requests may consist of several documents in like form. A request may be
sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form, and must be

authenticated by the person or persons making it.

The Company arranges for the notice to Shareholders to be sent for annual
general meetings at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to be

sent at least 10 clear business days for all other general meetings.

For putting forward proposals at any general meeting or enquiries to the
Board, Sharcholders shall do so in writing to the Company Secretary.
The letter shall state clearly the identity of the Sharcholder, the amount
of shareholding, correspondence address and telephone number, and the
related suggestions and enquiries. The Company shall, in a reasonable and
practicable manner, pass the said matter to the Board and respond according

to the situation.

In addition, the Company may receive letters or phone enquiries from
Sharcholders from time to time, and the Company will, in a reasonable and
practicable manner, respond as quickly as possible. For matters concerning
the Company’s shares and basic information of announcements, enquiries
shall be put forward to the Company whose contact particulars are as

follows:

Address: Suite 902, 9th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3168 2588

Fax: (852) 3168 2599

Office Hours: 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

Monday to Friday (except public holidays)
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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The rights of Sharcholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at general meetings are contained in the Articles of Association.
Details of such rights to demand a poll procedure are included in all relevant
circulars to Shareholders and will be explained during the proceedings of

meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange

and the Company following each general meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication
between the Shareholders and the Board. Mr. MENG Jin Long, an executive
Director who was also the then Chairman, attended the 2018 AGM. The
chairmen of the Audit Committee, the RQNC and the Independent Board
Committee (where applicable), or in their absence, other members of the
respective committees, are available to answer questions at the Shareholders’

meetings.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationship with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogues
with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an

informative and a timely manner.

Currently, investors can assess the Company’s information through
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company

(htep://www.crownicorp.com).

The Board reviews the above Shareholders’ communication policy on a

regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has posted its
Articles of Association on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. During the Current Year, there was no change in the

constitutional documents of the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Other than financial performance, environmental protection is our key
focus. The Group is pleased to present its annual environmental, social and
governance report (the “ESG Report”) of the Group for the Current Year in
accordance with the ESG reporting guidelines issued by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“ESG Reporting Guidelines”). Its purpose is to
report the Group’s policies and performance regarding the environment
and the society during the Current Year, and to deepen the communication
with the stakeholders. The ESG Report covers the Group’s environmental
and social performance. The data in the ESG Report are obtained from
the relevant departments of the Group and its stakeholders. We welcome
and value each of your feedback. If you have any questions or suggestions
regarding this ESG Report, please feel free to contact us at:—

Address:  Suite 902, 9th Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: +852 3168 2588

info@crownicorp.com

E-mail:

OUR PHILOSOPHY IN ESG

The Group fully understands the importance of protecting the earth, our
precious planet, and prioritising environmental and social responsibilities.
As a result, in formulating our business strategies, identifying different
potential acquisitions and investments, and fulfilling our business objectives,
one of our major criteria is to integrate our considerations in ESG into our
day-to-day operations, in order to operate the Group in a sustainable and

accountable way.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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ABOUT THE GROUP

During the Current Year, the Group was principally engaged in the business
of property investment, property development, hotel operations and

financial consultancy service in the PRC.

Property investment segment

As at 31 March 2019, the Group held three investment properties in
its portfolio: the Yingkou Property, the Jinggangshan Property and the
Zhongshan Property. While the Group earned rental income from the
Yingkou Property and the Jinggangshan Property during the Current Year,

the property investment segment is simply an office-based operation.

The Yingkou Property is a 16-storey commercial building situated in
Yingkou, the PRC. Two separate lease agreements in relation to the Yingkou

Property are entered into with local tenants.

For the Jinggangshan Property, the Group entered into a lease agreement

with a local lessee for a period of ten years.

For the Zhongshan Property, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with a local lessee for a period of 15 years on 29 March 2019. The lease

commenced on 1 April 2019 with a rent free period for the first 9 months.

Based on the condition described above, our senior management considered
that there was no significant environmental impact generated for our
property investment segment, and we focused our efforts on controlling
resource consumption and general waste disposal in the offices located in the

PRC and also in Hong Kong.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Property development and hotel operations segment

During the Current Year, the Weihai Property was still under construction
and the construction work is performed by the subcontractor, as such,
these segments are still in preparatory phase and have not yet commenced
its hotel operations, sale of serviced apartments and remaining commercial
portions and carparks. The Group’s senior management considered that the
environmental impact from the property development segment and hotel
operations segment by the Group during the Current Year was minimal and
mainly office based. Further discussions in relation to the selection of the
subcontractor are described in the “Supply Chain Management” section

below.

Financial consultancy service segment

The Group commenced its financial consultancy services segment during
the financial year of 2016/17 through its wholly owned subsidiary named
o E RS AR AT . As this segment is also an office-based operation,
similar to the property investment segment and hotel operations segment,

our senior management focuses in environmental protection in our office.

Given that all the segments are either office-based or not yet commenced
its daily operations, and that our staffs are all office-based, the Directors
consider the day-to-day office resources management is the most important

element of the Group’s ESG Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Office resources management

Living in the earth, our precious planet, we are accountable to build a
sustainable future for our generations and their generations. The Group
believes that everybody, including its employees, should play an important
role to protect the earth and its resources, and is committed to upholding
high environmental standards to fulfil relevant requirements under
applicable laws or ordinances during the operation of the business, including
all necessary requirements under the Environmental Protection Law of the
PRC (3 A R4k A B B2 5% A8 3% ) and any environmental legislation in
Hong Kong. The main influences on environment in the process of our daily

normal operation in our offices are consumption of paper, power and water.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIE-HEBREBHRSE m

Electricity and water consumption

Electricity consumption is the major source of indirect greenhouse gas
emission at our offices. During the Current Year, the Group consumed
approximately 241,927 kWh of electricity. The Group sets out several
comprehensive guidelines and measures in relation to energy saving to its
employees with an aim to minimise the greenhouse gas emissions from

consumed electricity. A summary of the guidelines are listed as follows.

In the offices of the Group, we maintain an indoor temperature at an
optimal level of 25C. We clean the air conditioner and ventilation system
regularly to reduce unnecessary electricity usage. We install LED lighting
system in the offices, and we also encourage the use of natural light.
We encourage our employees to turn off all equipment when not in use,
especially during lunch hours and after office hours. We highly encourage
our employees to make use of modern telecommunication systems, such as
telephone or video conferencing system, to minimise travel arrangements.
We put notices and signs emphasising the importance of energy saving in the

offices.

In relation to the consumption of water, we strictly control the frequency
of water usage, and as a result, consumption of water was saved. During
the Current Year, the Group mainly consumed water in a regular fire drill
exercise. We have not experienced any issue in sourcing water that is fit for

the aforesaid purpose.

Non-hazardous waste management

The main wastes are the domestic waste from daily operations, and the
domestic sewage generated from staff’s daily usage. The Group promotes
different environmental friendly measures to reduce disposal of non-
hazardous waste (such as used papers) in the Group’s offices. We encourage
our employees to reduce unnecessary printing and photocopying by using
double-sided copying. We also suggest the use of electronic information
systems for material sharing or internal administrative documents. We
encourage employees to treasure and conserve resources by keeping
records of the quantity of stationery and equipment and maintaining a
formal purchase requisition system. We also encourage our employees to
use proper domestic waste treatment methods, and require employees to
dispose of domestic waste to the designated collection containers or places
in accordance with the specified location and time. In offices where sorting
waste is implemented, we encourage our employees to categorise domestic
waste. Employees are prohibited from dumping or stacking domestic waste

arbitrarily.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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SUMMARY OF KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS FOR SUBJECT AREA A.

ENVIRONMENT

Environmental indicators

B

Emissions
Nitrogen oxides emissions (kg)
Sulphur oxides emissions (kg)

Particulate matter emissions (kg)

Greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions

Total GHG emissions (kg of carbon dioxide
(“CO?”) equivalent)

Direct emissions (Scope 1) (kg of CO: equivalent)

Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (kg of CO:2 equivalent)
Other indirect emissions (Scope 3) (kg of CO2 equivalent)

GHG intensity (kg of CO2/number of employees)

Waste

Non-hazardous waste generated in total
— paper used (number of paper)

— toner cartridge (piece)

Hazardous waste generated in total (tons)

Use of resources
Energy consumption in total (kWh)

Energy consumption intensity (kWh/number of employees)

Water consumption in total (m?)
Water consumption intensity (m*/number of employees)
Total amount of packaging materials used

in finished products (tons)

Note 1: No hazardous waste is generated by the Group during the Current Year.

Note 2: The Group’s operations do not involve product packaging. No data is

disclosed.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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CARING FOR EMPLOYEES

The Group considers our employees are the most important asset for
our operations and development. We aim to provide a workplace with
equal opportunity, harmony, continuous training and prospective career
opportunities for each of our employees so as to drive every one of us to
work hard and achieve our business objectives and goals. As at 31 March
2019, the Group had a total of 47 employees, including the executive
Directors. The analysis on the Group’s employees by gender, age groups and

education levels is set out below:
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Employees by Education Levels
KRESHEKTER

6%

38%

@ Sccondary School

RIF-HEBKREBHRSE @

30%

@ College Degree

Hh 22 o B AL
@ Bachelor Degree Master Degree or above
B2y fiEl L 2 A R DL b

Our employees are located in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group
complies with labour laws and regulations in Hong Kong, including the
Labour Ordinance, and in the PRC, including the Labor Law of the PRC
(e N R I A B 45 B ¥ ) and the Labor Contract Law of the PRC
(3 N RSER B 55 B) & M ) . The Group respects human rights
and discriminations on sex, race, ethnicity, age and religion are strictly
prohibited. The Group adopts a non-discriminatory policy in its dismissal,
recruitment and promotion of staffs, and focuses only on the applicants’
and staffs’ qualifications, experience and merits. To ensure fairness, our
recruitment process includes centralising the candidate selection process
by the human resources department for Hong Kong recruitment and the
general manager for the PRC recruitment, standardising the interview
assessments, and undergoing a strict vetting process for the positions
offered. We attach great importance to equal opportunity and transparent
promotions. During the Current Year, there were no cases of child labour
or forced labour occurred in the Group, and there were no incidents of

discrimination in the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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Our compensation, working hours and rest periods are determined
by reference to our employees’ respective responsibilities, experience,
qualifications and performance. Working hours and holiday arrangements

strictly comply with the relevant labour laws and regulations.

We place strong emphasis on employee welfare and comply with the relevant
provisions of the laws in the PRC and in Hong Kong. We also aim to retain
our talents and minimise staff turnover rates. Our remuneration package
includes allowances, benefits-in-kind, medical insurance, contributions to
pension funds, discretionary bonus, as well as participation in a share option
scheme to eligible employees. Packages of each employee are reviewed and
adjusted regularly to ensure that they are up to prevailing market standard.
The Group remunerates its employees based on industry practice and the
performance of each individual. In the PRC, the Group contributes social
insurance and housing provident funds for employees and distributes
corresponding holiday benefits during holidays such as the Chinese New

Year.

We cultivate an atmosphere promoting excellence in the Group. Employees
with outstanding performance and capabilities are rewarded with financial
incentives such as bonuses and allowances, and/or attractive promotion

packages.

Training and development

The Group believes that the more the development of the potentials of
the employees, the more prosperous the Company could grow. As a result,
it is one of the Company’s missions to place strong emphasis on career
development of its employees and provide them with extensive trainings.
Based on employees’ career development plans and needs, the Group
strongly encourages employees to attend any necessary external training
courses, workshops and seminars, include job-related skills training,
professional skills training and managerial training. We encourage our
employees to attend external training courses and participate in professional
lectures by providing substantial support to them, such as providing
financial support and encouraging employees to take any necessary leave for
studying. We also provide continuous professional development trainings
to the Directors to enable them to develop and update their knowledge and
skills, and monitor the latest information concerning the industry and its

development.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Occupational health and safety

The Group puts the safety and health of employees as our top priority.
Even though the occupational safety and health risks of our Group’s office
staffs are relatively low, we take safety education and training seriously, and
we aim to raise employees’ awareness of safety and to prevent accidents
especially fire. The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that has a significant impact on the
Group relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards during the Current Year, including
the Law of the PRC on Work Safery (H# N RILFIH L& EEL),
the Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurance of the PRC ( 13 A\ R
JLFu ] TAG R BEE B ) and the Employee’s Compensation Ordinance in
Hong Kong.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Suppliers are crucial to our businesses and operations. The Group aims
at developing on mutual trust among its suppliers. The Group adheres to
international best practices and conducts fair and unbiased tender processes
when dealing with suppliers. Our supply chain management includes a
supplier selection mechanism with a number of stringent selection criteria
subject to the core principles of honesty, integrity, fairness, justice and
transparency. Supplier selection is performed by the corresponding operation
and office managers, and the Group sets out procurement procedures
when dealing with suppliers of goods and services. In supplier selection,
the Group conducts thorough due diligence and vetting process by taking
into account of a number of selection criteria including pricing, quality
of products, company background, past experience and reputation, supply
capacity, any non-compliance of local law and regulations on existing
business, qualifications attained and financial status. Besides, the Group also
expects our major suppliers to understand the importance of environmental
protection and social responsibility and put health and safety as one of their
core principles in doing businesses. Proper internal control measures are also
in place in our procurement system to ensure each supplier engagement is

approved by the appropriate level of management.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIE-HEBREBHRSE m

The Group also monitors the quality of products and services provided
by its suppliers on a regular basis. Where the Group discovers that the
quality of products and services did not meet our standard, or their services
provided was environmental unfriendly and energy inefficient compared to
their peers in the market, they will be required to make corrective actions
in a timely manner. Otherwise, they may be suspended from any business

relationships with us.

Selection of contractor for the construction work in the
Weihai Property

During the Current Year, the Weihai Property was under construction.
Such construction was fully outsourced by the Group to an independent
contractor which is a state-owned enterprise in the PRC and was socially
responsible by participating in several reconstructions after occurrence of

natural disasters and emphasised green and low carbon construction.

The construction of the Weihai Property has already commenced since April
2016 before it was acquired by the Company. Although the construction
work is provided by a contractor which has already been engaged, the senior
management took serious care in the background and their commitments
to the society and environment of that contractor by enquiring and
reading its ESG news and reports. During the Current Year, the project
personnel regularly monitor the progress of the construction conducted by
the contractor, and hold regular meetings with the contractor to check if
there were any toxic and harmful materials used and any contamination of
materials. We also emphasised the importance of avoidance, reduction, reuse
and recycling over disposal when managing wastes during the construction.
The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant

laws and regulations in relation to the contraction of the Weihai Property.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

During the Current Year, the Group’s customers are from our Yingkou
Property and our Jinggangshan Property leasing operations. Although there
were less than five customers during the Current Year, our Group values
mutually beneficial long standing relationships with them, and we aim at
delivering high quality services and products to our customers. Besides,
our Group is committed to protecting the information of our tenants. Our
employees are strictly prohibited to disclose the Company’s information
without authorisation, including the identity and background and the
contract terms with the tenants. We also make timely response to any
inquiries and renewal quotations from our tenants. The Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations in

relation to our products and services provided.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

To maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business and working environment,
the Group stresses great importance to anti-corruption measures to every
stakeholders including our employees, suppliers, customers and bankers.
Any form of corruption, especially fraud, extortion, bribery and money
laundering is strictly prohibited. We regularly remind our employees not
to accept gifts or rebates from suppliers or other stakeholders under any
circumstances, and not to receive or accept any gratification from any
persons, companies or institutions whom the Group has business dealings
with. To our external stakeholders such as suppliers, customers, professional
parties and bankers, we are committed to individual and business integrity,
adhering to the business ethics of honesty, integrity, fairness, mutual benefit,
and customer first. During the Current Year, there was no non-compliance
case noted in relation to bribery and corruption related laws and regulations,
including the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC ( #1 3 A\ R 3L
AN I 3 F ) and the Interim Provisions on Prohibiting Commercial
Bribery (B %S 1L B SE M AT 2 B9 47 B 5E ) formulated by the State
Administration for Industry and Commerce (2K T 17 B4 BLAL R )

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group adheres to the belief of “taking from society, and giving back to
society”. Apart from maintaining sound business development, the Group
also actively takes initiatives in community investments by actively involved
in the nurturing of talents in both the PRC and Hong Kong. Besides, the
Group encourages employees to take part in work-life balance activities
and community services, including various culture events, community

volunteering, employee outings, and supporting charitable organisations.
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Report of the Directors

SRS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial

statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
provision of management services to subsidiaries. The Group is principally
engaged in the business of property investment, property development,
hotel operations and financial consultancy service in the PRC. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 17

to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis by operating segments of the Group’s performance, assets and
liabilities for the Current Year is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated

financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the Current Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on page 77 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the

Current Year (Last Year: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the Current
Year, the key factors affecting its results and financial position, the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Company and compliance with laws and
regulations are set out in the sections headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this

annual report.

Information about a fair review of, and an indication of likely future
development in, the Group’s business is set out in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Report” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this

annual report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s stakeholders’ relationship is set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual

report.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Current Year, the turnover attributable to the Group’s largest
customer was approximately 38% of the Group’s total turnover and the
aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 100% of the Group’s total turnover. The purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier was approximately 79% of the
Group’s total purchases and the aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 98% of the

Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in any of

the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers noted above.

DONATIONS

The Group made no charitable donation during the Current Year (Last Year:

Nil).

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Current Year are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page

80 of this annual report, respectively.

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2019, calculated
under sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Companies Ordinance, amounted to

Nil (31 March 2018: Nil).

SHARES ISSUED

Details of the shares issued in the Current Year are set out in Note 25 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BONDS ISSUED

Details of the bonds issued in the Current Year are set out in Note 24 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SEHRE @

HEE P KAk v

AR JE - AR R K% P B Al 2 8 SR RAL
A 4 ) 8 SR KI38% - T A4 M K& P
Bt Al 2 4805 38 B0 A A 45 1) 4 4% 36 45100% o
A AR ) 1) 5 36 R T R 2 4R A A A £ [
PREEREAI79% - T A< 48 [ iy LA fg K B IR v
PR 2 SRR AL AR 4 ) 4B PR AR A198% o

B WEIRFEHREA CERRL EHRA)
S AT 95 3 T 0 B R A ) B AT IRA
5% VA b 2 B ROHE SR R b SCRT A 2 A4 B AT
o K % 7 el A3t B v o A A T R

K
A S S AR 4 B S A 4R A (L
) o

fiti i

T AEE BE > A\ T T A 45 T £ 5 5 B 2 I
43 0 S B S R M S 30 S AR AR R AR 80
HZiARRsmE-

RER-NUEZA=Z+—H - ARaF g
YR il 1 4% 2 W AR 55291 ~ 297 Be 299 R 5
RHE(CFE-)NFE=ZA=+—H: ) -

O 47 ey

AR FE 2 TLVBEAT LR R O A7 B B S R
Bt k25 o

v AT

AR BB AT AR R O A A T B A
k24 o

B BRERAE A PR A 7
2018/2019 4E it




Report of the Directors (continued)

SEHRSE @

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a

pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties for investment purposes are set out in

Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 184 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of the shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) listed on the Stock Exchange, nor did the Company or any of its

subsidiaries purchase or sell any of the Shares during the Current Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Current Year and up to the date of this annual

report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Ms. HUNG Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 28 March 2019)

Mr. LI Yong Jun (Vice Chairman)
(Appointed on 3 May 2018)

Mr. LIU Hong Shen (Vice Chairman)

Mr. MENG Jin Long

Mr. YEUNG Man, Simon
(resigned on 28 March 2019)

Dr. WONG Hoi Kin (appointed on 9 July 2018 and
resigned on 28 March 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. LONG Tao

Mr. REN Guo Hua

Mr. CHEN Fang
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Report of the Directors (continued)

According to Article 110 of the Articles of Association, the Board shall have
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director
cither to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. According to
A.4.2 set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, any Director appointed
to fill the casual vacancy should be subject to election by Shareholders at the

first general meeting after appointment.

Accordingly, Ms. HUNG Man who was appointed as Director on 28 March
2019, shall retire from the office at the forthcoming AGM and being

eligible, offer herself for re-election.

Pursuant to article 133 of the Articles of Association, at each AGM one
third of the Directors (the number nearest to and less than one-third) who
have been longest in office since they were last elected or appointed by the

Shareholders shall retire but shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. MENG Jin Long and Mr. CHEN Fang shall retire and,

being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the Current Year or during the period from 1 April
2019 to the date of this annual report are available on the website of the

Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INED, namely Mr. LONG Tao,
Mr. REN Guo Hua and Mr. CHEN Fang, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. At the date of this

annual report, the Company considers all of them to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 23 to 27 of

this annual report.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

SEHRSE @

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The emoluments payable to Directors (including executive Directors
and INEDs) were determined with reference to their respective job
responsibilities and the prevailing market rate for their respective positions

in the Group.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other than

statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers” liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance when this report prepared
by the Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the

Companies Ordinance.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the
Current Year, and no equity-linked agreements to which the Company is a
party subsisted as at 31 March 2019.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors, the controlling Shareholders or substantial Shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or their respective close associate (as defined in
the Listing Rules) was interested in any business which competes or is likely

to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

Save as the transactions disclosed in “Related Party Transactions” as set
out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, no transactions,
- | 1 , ’
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

end of the Current Year or at any time during the Current Year.

Save as the transactions disclosed in “Related Party Transactions” as
set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, there are
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance between the
Company, or one of its subsidiaries, and a controlling Shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries, and no contract of significance for the provision of services
to the Company or of its subsidiaries by a controlling Shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries, which subsisted at end of the Current Year or at any time

during the Current Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the Current Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2019, none of the Directors or the chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) which were required: (a) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO; or (b)
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code as set out in the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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A A By Z 5

Long Positions in the Shares of the Company

Shares/ Percentage of

underlying total number of

Name of Director Nature of Interest Shares issued Shares®
i B8 8847

HPEHW i 2% VE T ety BBy By 2 E 4 ks

Ms. Hung Interest in a controlled corporation’ 1,517,314,000 44.24%

4+ ZYEY RS

Mr. Li Interest in a controlled corporation? 1,012,336,000 29.51%

By e eV E 2 RS2

Note: Pff 5 <

Crown International Corp. Limited (“CIC”) beneficially owned 298,332,000
Shares and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Redstone Capital Corporation
Limited (“Redstone”). Crown Landmark Corporation Limited (“CLC”)
beneficially owned 1,218,982,000 Shares, and is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Crown Landmark Fund L.P. (“CLF”), which is in turn wholly-owned by
Crown International Fund Corporation (“CIF”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
Redstone. Redstone is solely owned by Ms. Hung. Thus, Ms. Hung is deemed
to be interested in 298,332,000 Shares of the Company held by CIC and
1,218.982,000 Shares of the Company held by CLC.

Eternal Glory Holdings Limited (“Eternal Glory”) beneficially owned
902,336,000 Shares and through its wholly-owned subsidiary Rising Century
Limited (“Rising Century”) owned 110,000,000 Shares. Eternal Glory owned
as to 50% by Mr. Li and 50% by Ms. Liu Xin Jun (“Ms. Liu”). Thus, Mr.
Li is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Eternal Glory and Rising
Century.

The percentage has been arrived at based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 March 2019 (i.e. 3,430,000,000 Shares).

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Redstone Capital Corporation Limited
(MRedstone ] ) Z 2 % Wt i A W) & 7
B A R A A (T 55 BB ) 45 B
£298,332,000B B 44 © Crown Landmark
Fund L.P. ([CLF ) Z 2 & W & 2 7 256
EOb A A (8 ) 755
41,218,982,000 B 4 - CLFH Redstone
Z % % M} & 24 B Crown International Fund
Corporation ([ CIF ]) A 2 ¥ HE 25 o
Redstone H1 i€ %+ ¥ BE A7 o DIk - B &+
PO I 5% 52 I B O 24 B A =2298,332,000
WA A B KB EEBERERZ
1,218,982,000/B¢ A< 24 B e 4y HiE A 1 2

Eternal Glory® %% #E 902,336,000 4%
o ] B Oy B 7 b A W B A W Rising
Century Limited ([Rising Century ]) #EH
110,000,000/8 2 24 & B 43 © Eternal Gloryﬂfl
BB S0% A Mk I BIRTE L (T8
b ]) BEAH 500 M Oy HE 2 o PRI b - 2% 5 A Bk
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND 3 BB o B 3Ll A i B By B
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT BRIy 2 B2 Bk
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests or short positions of the corporations or RE-F—NWEZH=Z+—H - EARAF R
persons, other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company, in TR 5 T B A0 58 330k A B 2 B Rl A P
the Shares and underlying Shares, as recorded in the register maintained by RO 8k 0 BRA A H E F R RATBN BN A

the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows: A N R B B A B Iy o B 2 M A ek
PRI
Shares/ Percentage of

underlying total number of

Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest Shares issued Shares®

il B8 BB 4T
JBe 3K £ 1 i 2 Pk Bedy BBy Bedy 26 4 s
CIC Beneficial owner! 298,332,000 8.70%
5 56 [ B HamHAa N
CLC Beneficial owner! 1,218,982,000 35.54%
B E HEHEAN
CLF Interest in a controlled corporation' 1,218,982,000 35.54%
CLF Zye i 2 R
CIF Interest in a controlled corporation’ 1,218,982,000 35.54%
CIF Z YL Z R A
Redstone Interest in controlled corporations' 1,517,314,000 44.24%
Redstone Ty B 2 R
Ms. Hung Interest in a controlled corporation’ 1,517,314,000 44.24%
e« + ZYEYE RS

55 5 BRAE 1 A R A ]
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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Shares/ Percentage of

underlying total number of

Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest Shares issued Shares®
M e
JB 3R 44 i 2% Pk Bty ARGy ey 2 E 4 bes
Eternal Glory Beneficial owner? 902,336,000 26.31%
Eternal Glory TR N2
Interest in a controlled corporation? 110,000,000 3.20%
e 2 RE 252
Mr. Li Interest in a controlled corporation? 1,012,336,000 29.51%
By A TPk Z RS
Ms. Liu Interest in a controlled corporation? 1,012,336,000 29.51%
B4+ e 2 RE RS2
Note: B} 5 -

CIC beneficially owned 298,332,000 Shares and is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Redstone. CLC beneficially owned 1,218,982,000 Shares, and is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CLE which is in turn wholly-owned by CIF, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Redstone. Redstone is solely owned by Ms. Hung. Thus,
each of CLF and CIF are deemed to be interested in the Shares owned by
CLC, Redstone is deemed to be interested in Shares owned by CIC and Share
interested by CIF and Ms. Hung is deemed to be interested in the Shares
interested by Redstone.

Rising Century beneficially owned 110,000,000 Shares and is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Eternal Glory, which in turn owned as to 50% by Mr. Li and 50%
by Ms. Liu, Therefore, Eternal Glory was deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Rising Century , and Mr. Li and Ms. Liu was deemed to be interested in
Shares held by each of Rising Century and Eternal Glory.

The percentage has been arrived at based on the total number of shares of the

Company in issue as at 31 March 2019 (i.e. 3,430,000,000 Shares).
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Report of the Directors (continued)

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”)

at the AGM held on 25 September 2015, for the purpose of providing

incentives or rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success

of the Group’s operations. A summary of the principal terms of the New

Scheme is set out below:

(@)

(ii)

Eligible participants of the New Scheme include the Directors,
including the INEDs, other employees of the Group, suppliers
of goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group, any
consultant, advisor, any person or entity that provides research,
development, other technological support or services to the Group, the
Shareholders, and any non-controlling shareholder of the Company’s

subsidiaries.

The New Scheme became effective on 25 September 2015 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from

that date.

(iii) The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and issued

upon the exercise of the share options to be granted under the New
Scheme is 260,000,000 Shares, representing 7.58% of the shares in
issue of the Company as at the date of the mandate approved by the
Shareholder in 2018 AGM, and representing approximately 7.58% of

the shares in issue of the Company as at the date of this annual report.

(iv) The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued

upon the exercise of the share options granted under the New Scheme
(including both exercised or outstanding share options) to each grantee
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital
of the Company for the time being (the “Individual Limit”). Any
further grant of share options in excess of the Individual Limit in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant
must be separately approved by the Shareholders in general meeting of
the Company with such grantee and his/her close associates abstaining

from voting.

SEHRE @

Jik I
AAFRZFR-HFENAZTHABITZMR
IR A R b R A — SR I T i (B
wt 1) o 5 7E R AR S R A H R
Z %2 B A 5% i o [l R o i R 2
EE PR T -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Wiat#lz G M2 HE WFES (LG
BoLJEPATE S AL ML IR B -
ACHR [ 2 8 i R 5 O M~ A SR 2
%P~ AT A i A SR P 4R 436 B S - B
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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)

(vi)

The option period during which an option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the New Scheme at any time shall be a
period to be determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence from the offer date, but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option

subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer to
a grantee, there is no minimum period required under the New Scheme

for the holding of an option before it can be exercised.

(vii) A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the

grant of an option.

(viii) The subscription price for the Shares under the New Scheme shall be a

(ix)

price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the higher
of (a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the Shares
on the offer date, which must be a business day; and (b) the average
of the closing prices of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations for the five business days immediately preceding the offer

date.

The life of the New Scheme is until the tenth anniversary of the
adoption date of the New Scheme or the date on which the New
Scheme is terminated by resolution of the Sharecholders in general

meeting, whichever is earlier.

During the Current Year, no share options were granted, exercised or

cancelled or lapsed under the New Scheme and no share options were

outstanding as at 31 March 2019.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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v)

(vi)
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Report of the Directors (continued)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Current Year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate granted to any Director or their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or were the Company or any of its holding companies,
fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Company’s Directors, their respective spouses or children under 18 years of

age to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions during the year ended 31 March 2019 are
being disclosed in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements. Such

transactions, insofar as they constitute:

(a) compensations paid to Directors, are connected transactions which are
fully exempt from the disclosure requirements under Rule 14A.95 of

the Listing Rules; and

(b) compensations paid to members of the senior management of the
Company, are not connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the principal corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the section headed

“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company’s compliance with the relevant provisions set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules for the Current Year are set out in the section headed

“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 8 April 2019, the Company received a sum of HK$40,500,000,
being proceeds on the further issue of bonds. Following such issue, the
aggregate amount of the outstanding bonds issued by the Company was

HK$55,500,000.

PARTICULARS OF IMPORTANT EVENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Board has not identified any
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the

Current Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to and within the
knowledge of the Directors, there is sufficient public float of more than 25%
of the Company’s issued shares during the Current Year and up to the date

of this annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

On 8 May 2019, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), who acted as auditor of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2018, has notified the Company
its resignation as auditor of the Company as the Company and PwC could
not reach a consensus on the fee level proposed by PwC for the year ended
31 March 2019. PwC has confirmed in its letter of resignation that it was
not aware of any matters that should be bought to the attention of the
securities holders of the Company in connection with its resignation. On
8 May 2019, BDO was appointed as the auditor of the Company to fill
the causal vacancy and hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming

AGM.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Report of the Directors (continued)

The consolidated financial statements for the Current Year have been
audited by BDO. A resolution will be proposed to the AGM to re-appoint
BDO, as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

HUNG Man

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CROWN INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Crown
International Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 77 to 183, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared

in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that

the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Key audit matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

BP0 A

Refer to notes 2.7 and 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

i 2 B A S B R R 2.7 15

The fair values of the investment properties held by the Group
were approximately HK$2,002,606,000 as at 31 March 2019,
with a revaluation gain for the year ended 31 March 2019
recorded in fair value adjustments on investment properties of
approximately HK$45,462,000.
REF-NREZHA=Z+—H> BEHEGFAZIRED
S AV H £1752,002,606,000 70 - E —F—JLEZNA
=St HR A EE R A T R R RS A B A A
#445,462,000% JC ©
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Our Response

A i 8 B 5 X

Our procedures in relation to the management’s assessment of
the fair value of the investment properties included:

T A A L 3B W 3 O BT AR A AT AR )T A
15 :

*  Evaluation of the independent external valuer’s

competence, independence and objectivity; and
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

18 17 1% B BN ¥R &5 ()

Valuation of investment properties

B R A i

Valuations performed by the independent external valuer
appointed by management were obtained for all the investment
properties to support managements estimated fair values,
which were derived using the direct comparison method. The
valuations were dependent on certain key assumptions that
require significant judgement, including fair market prices of
the completed investment properties of one of the investment
properties.

BB TR AT 7R Z 4 W 3 2 AT B S A/ R Al i R
9 A Al 8 - DA SR A B8 D G D A P
A th 2 A 5 o A (B R e i o T B s A e - T ARt
L - 45 L v — 9 R 8 S AP T R

We focused on this area due to the significance of the
investment properties balances and the significant judgement
involved in making the key assumptions in determining the

valuation.
FAM T 5 A O B R > R R IR A A AR R > HL
T A G IR T AR R G B R 3 T T A By o

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31

March 2018, were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified

opinion on those statements on 29 June 2018.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Our Response

B i 8 B 5 K

e Involved our internal valuation expert to discuss with
the independent external valuer and assessed the
methodologies used and the key assumptions used,
including adopted unit rates of the completed investment
properties. We compared the current market price to the
publicly available market data of comparable properties in

the same location; and

o R PRBRAM B R R Al S 5K B S A1 R Al B e
e REAG BT P O 3 K B B ARG - LA Y BB B SR
TR A BLAL R R o BRAM b B 7 [7] — i [ Y T L iy 2
1 BLAT i A B A B WD A5 2 T R s R

. Checked, on a sample basis, the published external
market data for the accuracy of the input data used by the

independent external valuer.

o TRRATAZ TR A A1 I oo > e DR S A/ Al 6
Fiv £ ) #9RET ) S S e e A

Based on the procedures performed above, we found the key
assumptions used in the management’s assessment of the fair
value of the investment properties were supported by the
available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report

in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRS:s issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
. . e . .

responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the

going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to

liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging

their responsibility in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
18 37 i SY 6 3R &5 ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a gOng concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Obrain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
RV S GIE S

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Li Yin Fan

Practising Certificate Number P03113

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HEFTRNARR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—LFE=H=1—HILFEZF

2019 2018
“R-E ZFRN\E
Note HK$’000 HK$’00_(}
B 5% T#xL Tw#oT
Revenue W 25 al 5 5,371 4,995
Other (losses)/gains, net Hith (1) &R - F 6 (450) 21,065
Other income At e A 180 108
Fair value gains on investment properties, net 8% %4 3 Z A FAE & A »
FH 15 45,462 1,335
Staff costs & B A % (14,698) (14,076)
Depreciation g 14 (1,111) (1,362)
Gain on bargain purchase ER L& 18 - 116,001
Other operating expenses Al 458 425 B S (23,176) (17,891)
Operating profit b=y | 11,578 110,175
Finance income S A 8 4,075 1,333
Finance costs il B R AR 8 (888) (1,898)
Finance income/(costs), net BN (RA) 39 3 _,1_8_7__________(5_6_5_)_
Profit before income tax B 1 13 B 1 8k A 9 14,765 109,610
Income tax expense B A5 B B 52 10 (10,974) (895)
Profit for the year 2 3,791 108,715
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: b 2w (54 ek :
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to AR HEEF A HEHIE Z
profit or loss: 1E H:
Currency translation differences B A A (138,239) 168,188
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income AE NI A (G ) Bk A
for the year il (138239 168,188
Total comprehensive (loss)/income N A (B ) B A8 H
for the year (134,448) 276,903
Profit/(loss) attributable to: PAT 405 A s A, () ¢
Owners of the Company P N/NEIE 2N 3,791 108,716
Non-controlling interests I e B 2 = (1)
3,791 108,715
Total comprehensive (loss)/income PLF 4% 75 MEA 4
attributable to: Ol $8) W e 48 79
Owners of the Company ENAE 2N (134,448) 276,895
Non-controlling interests I i B 2% - 8
(134,448) 276,903
Basic and diluted earnings per share A% A v B A HEAG AR Y
attributable to owners of the Company 0 B 2k A B B 9 7 A
for the year (expressed in HK cent per ( DA 45 I 9 4ill 2.3 )
share) 11 0.11 cent ¥4l 3.50 cents Al

Ee3FIS3H Z Mk B F 4 A M B Mk
—HB 4y o

The notes on pages 83 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

iREMIFIRIR R

Asat 31 March 2019 R ZF—LE=H=+—H

2019 2018
=2 ZF)\4E
Note HK$’°000 HK$’000
Fff TF#L T oo
Assets <33
Non-current assets Ik
Property, plant and equipment W2 - Wi Mk e 14 171,580 144,386
Investment properties Ea< g ES 15 2,002,606 2,091,000
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits At JRE WOk S~ FEA RO
P& & 19 1,467 1,209
Deferred tax asset E E BLIH & 23 814 870
2,176,467 2,237,465
Current assets i) A
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits At Wik T~ A AR
PEEA 19 168,241 2,122
Properties under development for sale e R Ry 16 758,763 568,801
Financial assets at fair value through AT EBEREZIIRZ
profit or loss &Rl 21 - 12,500
Restricted bank balances Z PR A SR AT 45 R 20 26,750 _
Cash and cash equivalents B4 KBl & S EY) 20 140,323 43,585
1,094,077 627,008
Total assets ¥ A0 8 3,270,544 2,864,473
Liabilities 14
Current liabilities i 13 4%
Other payables and accruals JL At JE A R T B E AR 22 221,523 101,885
Income tax payable JRE A5 ot 45 i 2,249 3,163
223,772 105,048
Net current assets Ui B A 870,305 521,960
Total assets less current liabilities S8 A DU W) £ A 3,046,772 2,759,425
Non-current liabilities JEVE B £ 4%
Other payables Al JRE A 35 T 22 6,608 6,623
Borrowings 18 & 24 598,046 160,000
Deferred income tax liabilities % HiE BT A5 B £ AR 23 414,297 430,373
1,018,951 596,996
Net assets A 2,027,821 2,162,429

Crown International Corporation Limited

Annual Report 2018/2019




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

RO IAIRE @

As at 31 March 2019 I =F—LFE=H="+—H

2019 2018
ZEE ZENE
Note HKS$’000 HK$'000
By s T#x T#T
Equity HE A

Capital and reserves WA B it Al
Share capital Je A 25 1,979,067 1,979,067
Other reserves Al 5% A5 48,754 183,202
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 4% 2 W) #E A A ME A # 25 2,027,821 2,162,269
Non-controlling interests Ik e T 2 - 160
Total equity B 23 A 2,027,821 2,162,429

The financial statements on page 77 to 183 were approved by the Board of

Directors on 27 June 2019 and were signed on its behalf:

Ms. HUNG Man
RE A &
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
B/ % oy ek

The notes on pages 82 to 182 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

B77BISBHZMBEWMER —F—~LFEANH
“hbHEEREgH - m AT ALRE
ERETHEE:

Mr. MENG Jin Long
okt b

Executive Director

BITEF

ERFEIQAEZ MBI S5 MEREZ
—HB 4y o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

inBI

EmEaR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E —F—WE=ZH =1 — HILF&

Attributable to owners of the Company

LY-LE ZIN 3
Non-
Share Capital Exchange Revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
JiA e 1] 52 Al REEA BE RS HiA A
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Ti#n T Ti#x T T Tin T Tin
Balance at 1 April 2018 RE%— NENA—H 28 1,979,067 7,915 38,322 12,025 124,940 2,162,269 160 2,162,429
Comprehensive income: 2B ¢
~ Profit for the year —EREH - - - - 3,791 3,791 - 3,791
Other comprehensive loss: Joflo 2 ¢
- Currency translation differences —RIHEER = = (138,239) = o (138,239) = (138,239)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 21 (BH) /BABH - - (138,239) - 3,791 (134,448) - (134,448)
De-registration of a non-wholly SR — 6 2 Y WY A
owned subsidiary - - - - - - (160) (160)
Balance at 31 March 2019 REF-NEZHZF-HZ
£ 1,979,067 7915 (99917) 12,025 128,731 2,027,821 - 2,027,821
Balance at 1 April 2017 REB—LERA—HZ
3 1,309,124 7915 (129,858) 12,025 16,224 1,215,430 153 1,215,583
Comprehensive income: s«
— Profit for the year —4 A = = = = 108,716 108,716 1 108,715
Other comprehensive loss: pRUET
- Currency translation differences -l RSER - - 168,180 - - 168,180 8 168,188
Total comprehensive income AT A - - 168,180 - 108,716 276,896 7 276,903
‘Transactions with owners in their capacity — SHER A (DL ILBEH A2 5 7)
as owners: RITZR S
Issue of ordinary shares as consideration BIRERIEREGAHZ
for a business combination (Note 25) R (H2s) 335,400 - - - - 335,400 = 335,400
Issue of new shares BTG 334,543 - - - - 334,543 - 334,543
669,943 - - - - 669,943 - 669,943
Balance at 31 March 2018 REZ-MEZRZF—HZ
Btk 1,979,067 7915 38,322 12,025 124,940 2,162,269 160 2,162,429

The notes on pages 83 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= v —]1
MOIRERER
For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—LFE=H=1—HILFEZF

2019 2018
— - FN\E
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt i T#x T#T
Cash flows from operating activities REBWHZBEHE
Profit before income tax Wi Fir 45 B¢ 1 ¥ 1) 14,765 109,610
Adjustments for: I H :
Finance costs [[13292%:N 8 888 1,898
Finance income BB A 8 (4,075) (1k,253)
Depreciation e 14 1,111 1,362
Loss on written off of property, W5 3 ~ Wi K
plant and equipment W 2 e 18 506 -
Gain on bargain purchase Wi I 1 =2 W 2 18 - (116,001)
Exchange losses/(gains) [ Sa G 8, (&) 6 32 (16,099)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 8 B 2\ 2 R 6 - (302)
Fair value gains on investment properties, net 4% BYREZATHEHBEF -
e i 15 (45,462) (1,335)
Impairment of other receivable balances At WA K L 65 % AL 6 - 686
Changes in working capital BEEEEE
Trade receivables JRE Wi R ik - 8,925
Other receivables, Al JE WK T
prepayments and deposits T kI B % 4 (166,774) 93,509
Properties under development for sale rEgREpYE (191,113) (89,602)
Other payables and accruals A W8 A5k sk 3 K
JE T £ A5 125,207 (65,841)
Net cash used in operations REEEHZH & TH (264,915) (74,523)
Net cash used in operating activities REWH PN B S H . (264,915)  (74,523)
Cash flows from investing activities BEFH 2B &R E
Purchase of property, plant and equipment i N\ 3 ~ W s B A (37,964) (40,051)
Addition of investment properties NEREW R (1,166) (1,190)
Redemption/(acquisition) of short-term IR, (WS ) J8 B
investment 11,692 (11,900)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries H B B ) 4 W BT A5k = 952
Repayment of consideration payable 18 92 B A AR = (222,315)
Cash and bank balances acquired from H 3B A OF o W
business combination B4 B AT A R 18 - 8,939
Placement of restricted bank balance 12 T80 32 B A SRAT 45 R (26,750) -
Interest received SR @E B 4,075 1,333
Net cash used in investing activities wREHFHZHEFE (50,113)  (264,232)
B BRER A A B A ]
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

mBRERER (8

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # E —F—LFE=H =—1—H IFFEF

2019 2018
ZR - ZENE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Wi it T T
Cash flows from financing activities Tl 35 W) 2 B4
Proceeds from issue of shares BEAT e Z B A5k ] - 334,543
Proceeds from issue of bonds BAITEFZ A aK0E 13,350 -
Drawdown of entrusted loan BT 582,850 =
Repayment of entrusted loan TR R (149,210) (27,500)
Interest paid [ERREEIPSS (34,938) (11,246)
Net cash generated from financing activities HWARWEHHIH 2B EHFH 412,052 295,797
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and REeErRJEFEM2Z
cash equivalents Wm,/ (&) S5 97,024 (42,958)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 45 %] Z Bl 4 & Bl 4 {4 43,585 85,289
Exchange (loss)/gain on cash and e kBHE&ESHMZ
cash equivalents [ 5 () Wk (286) 1,254
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RERZBLE R B4 EHED 20 140,323 43,585

The notes on pages 83 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm © 8115 ¥ R B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—LFE=H=1—HILFEZF

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activities of Crown International Corporation Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together with the Company are
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are (i) property investment,
(ii) property development, (iii) hotel operations, and (iv) provision of
financial consultancy service, whilst those of its principal subsidiaries

are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is suite 902, 9th Floor,
Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong which is also

its principal place of business.

The Company has its shares traded on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Directors consider the ultimate
holding company to be Redstone Capital Corporation, incorporated in

the Samoa.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

Dollar (“HKS$”), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue

by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2019.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements of Crown International
Corporation Limited have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “HKFRS”) and the provisions of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance which concern the preparation of
financial statements. In addition, the financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis, except for investment properties and certain

financial instruments, which are measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # E —F—LFE=H =—1—H IFFEF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEEIEORMEE (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 S WAL (&)
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with A S A v T s o 4 R 2
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. e W5 B A T IR R A L
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the 5 2R A5 2L 7 E ) AR 4R T o st
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas BOR IRE A H A B8 o % 6 B B iR i
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or wE4H 98 V5 I i R ) B o A
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the A B AR R R Al S AR B
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4. M= EKZ R -
(a) Effect of adopting new standard and amendments to (a)  IRANHT R J Bl 17 1€ R 5 57T
existing standards K E
The following new standard and amendments to existing VLT 5B ¥ Rl e B 4T ¥ RIE 5T
standards are mandatory for the Group’s financial year AR ZFE—)NEMH—HK
beginning on or after 1 April 2018: 2 1% B B =2 AR 4R T B A BE
[
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time adoption BN AR AR
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards “E-NER BIRZBT B

ZEONERE KRAFELHE
R B el

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments FHMBEREEN 4@TH
9%
HKERS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers FBHERERN KAFFAHZ
155 ens
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers FHMBREEN KEEFAHZ
(Clarificaions to HKERS 15) pAbl ¥4 i Wi (B
A 55
Z2WE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 REGFHBORBE (4])
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 S L (4)
(a) Effect of adopting new standard and amendments to (a)  FRAY A7 J B 17 R 15 7T
existing standards (Continued) IKZHE (4
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property ERiipigd ] b3Ze/Ed 1
A0 BT
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and b (RBMBR MRS REMR
Advance Consideration FRBRAEG) [
it B 5009
Except as described below, the application of the new and B3 R SO A - i AR S R
amendments to HKFRSs in the current period has had FH BT 5T I 8816 5T 7 v B % 3t
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance T v I 3 A 4 5 A B R R
and positions for the current period and prior year and/ A A A B Y T 5 3R B O DL
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial M /A Bk A W R BT R
statements. ﬂﬁ Wﬁﬁﬁﬂéﬁjﬁ%ﬁ% °©
55 BRER AR T A B A )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Effect of adopting new standard and amendments to

existing standards (Continued)

(a)

(i)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

The new standard addresses the classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities, introduces new
rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment
model for financial assets. HKFRS 9 introduces
a new model for the recognition of impairment
losses — the expected credit losses (“ECL”)
model, which constitutes a change from the
incurred loss model in HKAS 39. HKFRS 9
contains a “three stage” approach, which is based
on the change in credit quality of financial assets
since initial recognition. Assets move through
the three stages as credit quality changes and the
stages dictate how an entity measures impairment
losses and applies the effective interest rate
method. The new rules mean that on initial
recognition of a non-credit impaired financial
asset carried at amortised cost a day-1 loss equal
to the 12-month ECL is recognised in profit
or loss. In the case of accounts receivables this
day-1 loss will be equal to their lifetime ECL.
Where there is a significant increase in credit
risk, impairment is measured using lifetime ECL
rather than 12-month ECL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEEBORBE (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 HiWILHE (&)
(a) Effect of adopting new standard and amendments to (a)  FRAN A7 e B 17 R 15 7T
existing standards (Continued) K2 HE (4
(a) (i) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued) (@) () FHEIBHE Ml
oSk [ 4Rt T A |
(%)
Classification and measurement of financial EMTAZASER
instruments ﬁ_ﬁ
HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three T v s A A
principal classification categories: measured 9 5% M & Rl B
at amortised cost, at fair value through other o R =M B
comprehensive income and at fair value through IS X W N
profit or loss. These supersede HKAS 39’s N /AN O (£ ]
categories of held-to maturity investments, At 22 T W 25 5 R
loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial B VAH 1B R 18
assets and financial assets measured at fair value 75 5 MR o % 4 B
through profit or loss. BURT 78 & at
RIEE395k M k¢ A &
FHHZHE &
K B W WK T~ v
B 5 A R
AP EE R R
Al Y B A
il e
5500 BRER AR A B )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # E —F—LFE=H =—1—H IFFEF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEAEHBORBEE (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 SR (%)
(a) Effect of adopting new standard and amendments to (2)  FRAHHE R Je B 17 3 A 15 7T
existing standards (Continued) K2 HE (4
(a) (i) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued) (@) () FHEBBHE Ml
o9k [ 4 T 2
(%)
Classification and measurement of financial EMTAZ K
instruments (Continued) e (5)
The following table summarises the original T 3R M At A 4R T R
measurement categories under HKAS 39 and the ZEF—)4FEMA—
new measurement categories under HKFRS 9 for H 45 % 4 i & 2 A
each class of the Group’s financial assets as at 1 PR Al e RIS
April 2018. 39%% 5 A w2 K
R 18 7 U B B ik
& Bl SR ok Z B st
g bl
Carrying amount Carrying amount
Original classification New classification as at 1 April 2018 as at 1 April 2018
Financial assets under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9
T 75 o 0 5
HEHE A 3t i ) HEH A9k
RRHE 7 # ki H) REEH M B REEN 305N =%~ N4 BEF— N\
KA ey 39U AT RN ok WM WH—HZWEE WA —H B
HKS$ HK$
Wt Wt
Other receivables, prepayments  Loans and receivables Amortised cost 2,333 2,333
and deposits
Al FE WK IE BRI WA
TS A B A% 4
Financial assets at fair value Fair value through Fair value through 12,500 12,500
through profit or loss profit or loss profit or loss
TR B A 25 51 BATHEBERHESIIE %A FHERERIE
ZEMEE
8 8 Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 BEEBORBE (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Effect of adopting new standard and amendments to

existing standards (Continued)

(a)

(i)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial

instruments (Continued)

There will be no impact on the Group’s
accounting for financial liabilities, as the new
requirements only affect the accounting for
financial liabilities that are designated at fair
value through profit or loss and the Group does
not have any such liabilities. The derecognition
rules have been transferred from HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and have not been changed. The
adoption of HKFRS 9 has not had a material

impact on the results of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # E —F—LFE=H =—1—H IFFEF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 BEEBORBE (41)

2.1 H LA (%)
(a)  ERAVHT A R BT AR 6T

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Effect of adopting new standard and amendments to

Crown International Corporation Limited
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existing standards (Continued) K2 HE (4
(a) (i) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued) (@) () FHEBBHE Ml

Souk [t T A ]
(%)

Impairment under ECL model G SR E AR
H T Z Wi

Based on the historical experience of the Group, 95 A 5 O A A

the default rates of the outstanding balances with 5o &5 o H b E

customers and other receivables are low. As at 1 Wk TR R A

April 2018, no additional credit loss allowance R 1 1 A R AK -

has been recognised against accumulated profits B2 \ENH

as the estimated allowance under the ECL —H - WEHT I

model was not significantly different to that 3 A 2R R AT Bk X

under HKAS 39 based on the counterparties’ B0 P R > f R

past repayment history and forward looking T B H A K

information. TET i A w188 45 B
7 W7 At 539
S8 TE T B AH BE A
3 i T Ok A R
3 JiE R w v A
B RAME B H
5o

Accounting policies resulting from application of JE ) A5 8 B 75 R

HKEFRS 9 are disclosed in Note 2.10. HERE SRS B &

F R R B FE2.10



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 BEEBORBE (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Effect of adopting new standard and amendments to

existing standards (Continued)

(a)

(i)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Transition

The Group has applied the transitional
provision in HKFRS 9 such that HKFRS 9 was
generally adopted without restating comparative
information. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new ECLs rules
are therefore not reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March
2018, but are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position on 1 April 2018,
if any. This mean that differences in the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9 are
recognised in retained earnings and reserves as at
1 April 2018, if any. Accordingly, the information
presented up to 31 March 2018 does not reflect
the requirements of HKFRS 9 but rather those of
HKAS 39.

2.1 S (%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Effect of adopting new standard and amendments to

existing standards (Continued)

(@)

(if)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with

>
Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the
first time in the current period. HKFRS
15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related

interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
initially applying this standard recognised at the
date of initial application, 1 April 2018. Any
difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained earnings (or
other components of equity, as appropriate) and
comparative information has not been restated.
Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected
to apply the standard retrospectively only to
contracts that are not completed at 1 April 2018.
Accordingly, certain comparative information
may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 18
Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction Contracts

and the related interpretations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEFENEORMEE (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 HiWILHE (&)
(a) Effect of adopting new standard and amendments to (a)  FRAN A7 e B 17 R 15 7T
existing standards (Continued) K2 HE (4
(a) (ii) HKEFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with (@) (i) M EHE g
Customers” (Continued) RIS 159% [k B
FPRAHZ W]
(%)
HKEFRS 15 introduces a 5 step approach to A U B 5 o ]
revenue recognition: SE159% 51 AW A T
o B LA 2 B
Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with B BANEEFT
customer. AIEEF
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations B WA AR
in the contract. HRLE
Step 3: Determine the transaction price. H3%: MER A
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to O SN L
the performance obligations in the WESHMNE
contract. HRLE
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) Wk RNEMERE
the entity satisfies a performance AN (Z0R
obligation. ) T W 4 o
The standard requires entities to exercise % Y FI) 22K B S AR
judgement, taking into consideration all of the RN R A
relevant facts and circumstances when applying B & 25 B R R
each step of the model to contracts with their B P51 B AR
customers. ZHmAMBEEETR
00
5500 BRER AR A B )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Effect of adopting new standard and amendments to

existing standards (Continued)

(a)

(ii)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with

Customers” (Continued)

The principal operating activity of the Group
is rental income which will continue to be
accounted for in accordance with HKAS17
“Leases” and financial consultancy service.
Therefore, based on the assessment of the Group,
the adoption of HKFRS 15 from 1 April 2018
has resulted in changes of accounting policies of
the Group, however, it does not have significant
impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognition of the Group, and no adjustment to
the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2018 has
been made. However, additional disclosures have
been presented in Note 2.20 to the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March

2019 as a result of adoption of HKFRS 15.

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations and the accounting policies resulting
from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in
Note 2.20.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEG BB E (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 HiWILHE (&)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet (b) A g R A Z A AT
effective AENERT By v B B 7R A
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to DL ) fig B AS 45 A &
the Group’s accounting policies and consolidated financial SR % ik B B 265 R AH TR 4 B
statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and BT R A v B R
have not been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s R © A A - 4H 0 R A R - HAR
current intention is to apply these changes on the date they B Tl R SR LR AN o AR H
become effective. AT T30 A0 46 B A2 R H B0
A % S A )
Effective for HUTRY
accounting period w2k
beginning Rt
on or after AR
HKERS 16 Leases 1 January 2019 R GE. “EhE
gt ~B-1
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax 1 January 2019 B (RRHARE  HRRERNFREE e oy
Treatments #REES) “f-h
REHDE
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with 1 January 2019 FEMBAERN  REAXEERARE “EE
Negative Compensation o (BiTk) ~A-H
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 12, 1 January 2019 BEHIREE  ARERRUELERET SRR
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle  Income Taxes “F-TEE it “A-h
SE-thEl
bai i
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 23, 1 January 2019 BEMBRERN  EROTEUAORNLT  ZF0E
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle  Borrowing Costs “3-1kE fefeak =~
SRR
2k
The Group has commenced a preliminary assessment of the A 55 B 4R 0 25 E AN %
impact of these new standards and amendments to existing BT e RN K BLAT BRI 2 B HT
standards and set out below are those that are expected to ZIE S FOOE B AR
have material impact on the Group’s accounting policies. Mz gt ECRA R -
SR BRI A PR 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

x0T FS IR R 5L (@

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

eftective (Continued)

(@)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 “Leases” addresses the definition of a lease,
recognition and measurement of leases and establishes
principles for reporting useful information to users
of financial statements about the leasing activities of
both lessees and lessors. A key change arising from
HKEFRS 16 is that most operating leases will be
accounted for on statement of financial position for
lessces. The Group is a lessee of various properties
which are currently classified as operating leases. The
Group’s current accounting policy for such leases is set
out in Note 2.19 with the Group’s future operating
lease commitments, which are not reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position, set out in

Note 27.

There will not be significant change in the accounting

treatment of lessors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 BEEBORBE (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective (Continued)

(@)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

HKFRS 16 provides new provisions for the accounting
treatment of leases and will in the future no longer
allow lessees to recognise certain leases outside of
the statement of financial position. Instead, almost
all leases must be recognised in the form of an asset
(for the right of use) and a financial liability (for the
payment obligation). Thus each lease will be mapped
in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position. Short-term leases of less than twelve months
and leases of low-value assets are exempt from the
reporting obligation. The new standard will therefore
result in an increase in assets and financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position. As for
the financial performance impact in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, the operating
lease expenses will decrease, while depreciation and the

interest expense will increase.

2.1 S (%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEEIEORMEE (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 S WAL (&)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet (b) E AW R AR Z 7T
eftective (Continued) BENE T 7 o5 IR A A
(#47)
(i) HKEFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) () BEMBEHEEAELG
AR (5)
Other than the increase in assets and financial B bt 5% 1 B 5 R 0 R
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial A 4l B R0
position and the financial performance impact in the VA B & 4 T WL 24 3R Y
consolidated statements of comprehensive income B SR U AN - AR
as mentioned above, the directors of the Group O T R A A B
expect that the adoption of HKFRS 16 will not R & 7 N
have significant impact on the financial position and R Fy A 5 SR 0 % B s R
financial performance of the Group. The new standard BIAS & 2 2R TR o
is not expected to apply until the financial year R HEAS R TN
beginning on or after 1 April 2019. U H— H S Z &G
Z BB T B AR A
2.2 Subsidiaries 2.2 W& A )
2.2.1Consolidation 22145 FRH
Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured entity) W B o ) 5 A B BT
over which the Group has control. The Group controls Z PR B (ARG AN
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, B o B AR B I Bk A R
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has P2 B v AR R
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the HEROHILHZEHE M
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which 7 5 B R - BB
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated BB e ) RE o BRY R W A dE
from the date that control ceases. REER EAREE S HsA
MR - 3 f28 0l B Ak 4
15 E AHR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 BEEBORBE (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values

at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair

value, unless another measurement basis is required by

HKEFRSs.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combination (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are

recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an
asset or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 in profit or loss. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income (Note 18).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 BEEBORBE (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combination (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform

with the Group’s accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interest in subsidiaries without

change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the
owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
amount of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling

interests are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # E —F—LFE=H =—1—H IFFEF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change
in carrying amount recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. The fair value
is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive

income are reclassified to the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 BEEBORBE (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 B M B E

2.3 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less

TP B S 2 W) = 4R 4 AR T B D

impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. E AN o AR 55 80 2 PR AN
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on BRAR o S B A ] 2 SE A AR A
the basis of dividend received and receivable. ] 1% O R O AR o

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend

exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in

fird 77 B Jag 2 W] 4% B 2 i B
SR N N Y PA ae TTR &
R~ BN R 15 T o A s R

the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of NZIRHEEEBRERRZFE
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the E (B E) R EaMBEREN
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the Z BRTHIAE - R ZE A W B e S IR 3B B
investees net assets including goodwill. JaE§ > ) B A Tl A A

2.4 Segment reporting

2.5

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors that

makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
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2.5 Al S

(a) HRER B H#HEN

Items included in the financial statements of each of the 7 4 [ B 00 BT RS W R
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the P36 H ¥ DA A B s
primary economic environment in which the entity operates WA 2 AR BRI
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial FrRE¥ (Tdhaefwl)s
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar, which is Wi A MBEREUB TR
the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation oo HRARNF 2 Re W K
currency. REEZ R HREN-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

(c)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where item are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except
when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying

cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets, such as equities classified as available for

sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that

balance sheet;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 BEEBORBE (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (Continued)

(i) income and expenses for cach statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting currency translation differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold
or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are reclassified to

profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 BEEBORBE (41)

2.6 Y3k ~ Wi b3 B Bt

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to

the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the

period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, furniture and equipment (other than
construction in progress) is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs to their residual values over their

estimated useful lives, as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 3 to 5 years
Computer, office equipment
and machinery 3 to 20 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Leasehold improvements are capitalised and depreciated over their

expected useful lives to the Group.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well as
borrowing costs capitalized during the periods of construction
and installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate class
of property, plant and equipment when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use
are completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and ready for its

intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—LFE=H=1—HILFEZF

2 BEEBORBE (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 W13~ Wb B st i ()

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than

its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
“other gains-net” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.
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2.7 Investment properties 2.7 BeEWE
Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land BEYE (LG b fepd
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital ) T5 A R R 4 B A B

appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It
also includes properties that are being constructed or developed
for future use as investment properties. Land held under
operating leases are accounted for as investment properties when
the rest of the definition of an investment property is met. In
such cases, the operating leases concerned are accounted for as if

they were finance leases.

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each of the
end of reporting period by external valuers. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If the
information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E ~F—NFE=H =+1—H ILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Investment properties (Continued)

If the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to being
held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or
both, and that is not occupied by the Group, it is reclassified
as an investment property, measured at fair value at the date of
reclassification and the difference between the fair value and the
net book value of the investment property is recognised in the

other comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible

reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Development cost of properties
comprises cost of land use rights, construction costs and
borrowing costs incurred during the construction period. Upon

completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties

held for sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable variable selling expenses

and the anticipated costs to completion.

Properties under development for sale are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond normal

operating cycle.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 BEEBORBE (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Financial Instruments

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018

(@)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVIPL”), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction

price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or

convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and

interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

x0T FS IR R 5L (@

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # E —F—LFE=H =—1—H IFFEF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Financial Instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

@@

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group

classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or

loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 BEEBORBE (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Financial Instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

(@)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVTPL: Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of
the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria
for debt instruments to be classified at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, as described above, debt instruments may be
designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly

reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Financial Instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

@@

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income are measured at fair value. Dividend income
are recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend
income clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby changes
in fair value, dividends and interest income are

recognised in profit or loss.

Crown International Corporation Limited

Annual Report 2018/2019

2 BEEBORBE (41)

2,104 W T H (&)

A) HZF—NEHH—HEE
H 198 it B (AT)

(@)

S E (4)

AT H

T 00 4y e R I O R A
98 1 JBE A48 S W - AR
45 [0 S VT 5 [e] g 338 458 7t
Ffth 2 T WA 25 P 2 5 4R
HATEM R BT -
%8 BTG 1R AR B A
o %A PEZE I fh 2
THT W 25 5 MR 1 B A %
PR o BER A
AR R A > BRIEIR S
W A B3 S0 e T S 4
BB AR o HAth W i K s
15 5 AU 3 fth 2 T WAL 25
N it 8 EL A o BT 4
I o A HAbRA T
Hor WM 3% A T A 8
R SR - BRIL A T
B~ BB B R R AR R
g Y T i



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 BEEBORBE (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Financial Instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

(@)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on trade receivables, contract
assets, financial assets measured at amortised cost and
debt investments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The ECLs are measured on
cither of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the reporting date:
and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual

period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall
is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’

original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Financial Instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

@@

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables and contract assets using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors

specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the

allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and

including forward-looking information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 BEEBORBE (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Financial Instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

(@)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 90

days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is

more than 180 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets, interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying

amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are initially measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at

fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

2,104 W T H (&)

A H=

FNEWH—HEHE

JH 1Y & At B (A7)

(i)

e (47)

&b EE 2 WE 1R
(#1)

AR AR B - i 1)
90K » il 28 HY £ B,
B 7 A i 34

AR R Ly 4 b A R
T A E UL A A B
i+ ()& KN A W BEAE
A AR T R R RE (B
EHER) (WFA)T
Ih) A 4 ) 2% B A A
BEHK HQZEME
FE M 180K

155 B TR AF 4 b R 2 A
SO % 4 il B A Y
89 A FE B (B AR T
Vol AR A ) o BRI AR
9 L R
B e N\ 3 48 R T A R
o

<l H

7 55 46 P 4 it R
A2 B OB kR Y
B o N HAEE R R 555
iR Y 42 BB B R
i B M B R AR
H) e 1Y 4 7 BB B 2 %
O3S T E A 2 LR
JE A AR 5 44 o

SR BRI A PR 4

2018/2019 4E it




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

x0T FS IR R 5L (@

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Financial Instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

@@

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition

as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are

recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is

prohibited.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 BEEBORBE (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Financial Instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

(@)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(Continued)

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met: (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring
the liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis; (ii) the liabilities are part of a
group of financial liabilities which are managed and
their performance evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or (iii) the financial liability contains an
embedded derivative that would need to be separately

recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
the gains and losses arising from the Group’s own
credit risk which are presented in other comprehensive
income with no subsequent reclassification to the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or
loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial

liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

x0T FS IR R 5L (@

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Financial Instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

@@

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, and bond payables
issued by the Group which are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
The related interest expense is recognised in profit or

loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability, or where

appropriate, a shorter period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 BEEBORBE (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Financial Instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

(@)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for

derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is

discharged, cancelled or expired.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of
that liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair
value of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are measured
to reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised

in profit or loss for the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Financial Instruments (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

categories: loans and receivables and available-for-sale

financial assets. The classification depends on the purposes

for which the financial assets were acquired. The Group

determines the classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition.

(a)

(b)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for the amounts that are settled
or expected to be settled more than 12 months after
the end of reporting period. These are classified as
non-current assets. Loans and receivables are classified
as “Trade receivables’, ‘Other receivables, prepayments
and deposits’ and ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group classifies financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss if they are acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short term, i.e. are
held for trading. They are presented as current assets
if they are expected to be sold within 12 months after
the end of the reporting period; otherwise they are
presented as non-current assets. The Group has not
elected to designate any financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 BEEBORBE (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21028 T H (4)
B) RoZE—N#E=H=+—H

2.10Financial Instruments (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially

all risks and rewards of ownership.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the

counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 BEEBORBE (41)
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2.10Financial Instruments (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets

that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that

the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 BEEBORBE (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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2.10Financial Instruments (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
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the consolidated income statement. JE 15T R AR AR RN
i 520 488 [ o
5500 BRER AR A B )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 BEEBORBE (41)

2104w T H (&)
(B) R-F—NFE=H=4+—H

2.10Financial Instruments (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31 March 2018

(Continued) Ll HiHE A i & 5T (AE)

Financial liabilities Rl £

(a) Recognition and measurement (a) MERR A&
Financial liabilities are classified into other financial 4 AR o R SR 8
liabilities at amortised cost. Other financial liabilities B AR 51 M ) G At 4 ik £
at amortised cost are recognised initially at fair value 18 o B 9 AR ) R 1 3
net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently s <5 Fib £4 65 90 2B 4% A F
stated at amortised cost. Any difference between (Mo EEZRS
proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption B ) T B o FLAR 4 8
value is recognised in the profit or loss over the period BRAG M o B A sk (40
of the other financial liabilities using the effective B2 2 AR ) B I 2
interest method. A A 22 7 At 4 il

EEES CINE N

Other financial liabilities are classified as current

liabilities if payment is due within one year or less.

) 2R 5 T 4R 25 A Tl

ik A ]k TR — 47 B R
JELIYI R 9 BT RE AT - B

If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. i 4 70 £ 65 4 B % R )
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the ffE > B RIS A IERE A

Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of

the reporting period.

i - BT WA Wi B H
i > BRIEALE F A A H
TR T 5t R P 5 OB

HEEHE YRR EA12
A A -
(b) Derecognition (b) A ILHER
A financial liability is derecognised when the HABETZHECHE
obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled it s ~ B sl B0 e
or expired. When an existing financial liability 4 Rl 0 R AT A A
is replaced by another from the same lender on o HBA SR A A HE
substantially different terms, or the terms of an — RN IE R KE A
existing liability are substantially modified, such as Il 468 ok 1 53 — 4 il £ A%
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition B - s B B AR REOR

of the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective

carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEFENEORMEE (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11Cash and cash equivalents 2B ERBESHEY

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash AR E B SRR T - B kB
equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits held at call with SEEYAFETHEASRBITE
banks. RAF K
2.12Current and deferred income tax 2.12 WiV 30 % 3B % Py 13 Bt
The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. AR B 2 BT B S A 555 B R A
Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive BUIE o BEIE A 5t 6 4 T W25 3R 9 e
income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in R - e BEL P JEL il A i i 2% B EL Y
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the RESS 9T R 2 T H AT R R A o A
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly BEAG LT > BEIE IR 43 37 At 2 Th
in equity, respectively. W i B A P TR
(a) Current income tax (a) BIHBr 1B
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of B3 BT 45 B 52 8 TS MR R AR
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance ] B RS A ) AR T e R R
sheet date in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries BEWLA Z B 580 45 53 H B
operate and generate taxable income. Management i 2 B b B AR A 2 Bk
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with S o A 708 B Ak A1) 52 e R P
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is FIL - B4 i P 2 01 AT A R
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where FeZ ML o 45 BILIG I 0 IR 0%
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to Wt TE 3 32 A 7 B M B <
the tax authorities. AR A
B BRER A A B A ]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 BEEBORBE (41)

2.12 B 9] % Y % P 15988 (4%)

2.12Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income

tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property
that is measured at fair value is determined assuming the

property will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those

temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R

87 145 ¥k < Bid 5 (i)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 BEEBORBE (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle

the balances on a net basis.

2.13Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present

legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is

probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle

the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

2.12 B 39) % Y it P 4 Bt (#1)
(b) BH13HE (%)

(c)

i A ¥ 52 7T o ] AT RE A K
B I I R R DA S
9 S 5 I A5 o BRI — A
IR T B > B 28 3 A S e e 4
R AR o N F R R ok
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 BEEBORBE (41)

2,134 (&)

2.13Provisions (Continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlements is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any

one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-
tax interest rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.

2.14Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of

the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or

loss as other income or finance costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.14Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at

least 12 months after the reporting period.

2.15Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial

period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they

are incurred.

2.16Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.17Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.

2 BEEBORBE (4)

2,144 %% (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Pension obligations

(c)

(d)

The Group contributes to a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the scheme are generally held in separate trustee-
administered funds. Contributions to the MPF Scheme by
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of

the employees’ basic salaries.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) are members of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the government of
the PRC. The retirement scheme contributions are based
on a certain percentage of the salaries of the subsidiaries’

employees.

The contributions are charged to the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income in the period in which they relate.

Bonus plan

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on a formula that takes into consideration the
profit attributable to the Company’s owners after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that

has created a constructive obligation.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date. The Group recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination when the entity
has a detailed formal plan to terminate the employment
of current employees without possibility of withdrawal.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of

the reporting period are discounted to their present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEFENEORMEE (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18Interest income 2.18 M) R ICA
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the AR W A T3 R R B R B 9 I
effective interest method. 1] Ll 4] B e e 52 o

2.19Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-

line basis over the period of the lease.

2.20Revenue recognition

Revenue recognition (Accounting policies applied from 1 April

2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 BEEBORBE (41)

2.20 ¢ % R (%)

2.20Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Accounting policies applied from 1 April

2018) (Continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply
to the contract, control of the goods or service may be transferred
over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods or service is

transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

. provides all of the benefits received and consumed

simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the

Group performs; or

*  does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time

when the customer obtains control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For contracts where
the period between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,

using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

2 BEEBORBE (4)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Accounting policies applied from 1 April

2018) (Continued)

(@)

(b)

(c)

Financial consultancy service

The Group provides financial consultancy service to
customers. Financial consultancy service income is
recognised in the accounting period in which the service is
rendered. For the service contract relates to routine services,
the service income will be recognised on a straight line
basis over the contract terms as the work is performed. For
services that are provided on ad-hoc basis, service income is
recognised upon completion of the provision of such ad-hoc

services.

Rental income

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight

line basis over the lease terms.

Sales of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties developed for
sale in the ordinary course of business is recognised when
the property is accepted by the customer, or deemed as
accepted according to the contract, whichever is earlier,
which is the point in time when the customer has the ability
to direct the use of the property and obtain substantially
all of the remaining benefits of the property. Deposits and
instalments received on properties sold prior to the date
of revenue recognition were included in the consolidated

statement of financial position under contract liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 BEEBORBE (41)

2.20 W % W R (%)

2.20Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018)

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for services
provided. The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for the Group’s activities, as described
below. The Group bases its estimates of return on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of customers, the type

of transactions and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Financial consultancy service

The Group provides financial consultancy service to
customers. Financial consultancy service income is
recognised in the accounting period in which the service is

rendered.

(b) Rental income

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight

line basis over the lease terms.

2.21Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent asset or liability is a possible asset or obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more

uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow of economic resources occurs so that

the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain,

an asset is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RO R @
For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

3 W M B AR B
3.1 J s B R R

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Group has not used any derivative financial instruments to

hedge its risk exposures.

Risk management for the Company and its subsidiaries is carried
out by the Executive Committee (“Excom”). Excom identifies,
evaluates and monitors financial risk in close co-operation with
the Group’s operating units. The Group monitors the financial
risk continuously to minimise the risk, such as foreign exchange
risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and

cash management.

(a) Markert risk

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and
transactions are principally denominated in HK dollars
and Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from its investments
which are located in the PRC.

As at 31 March 2019, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against HK dollars, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$Nil higher/lower
(2018: approximately HK$6,652,000 higher/lower)
respectively. The movement in the profit or loss relates
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of RMB denominated other receivables and

other payables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

x0T FS IR R 5L (@

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 S e e A B ()
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 R b R R (&)
(a) Markert risk (Continued) (a) TS (4F)
(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (i) BEeREEAFHEN R
Je e
The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank deposits 7 S 1 1 3 L B AR B R
and long-term borrowings from a third party with THRRRRKE B =TT H
fixed rates. The Group monitors and limits its interest ¥ A R R B o ARER
rate risk exposure through management of maturity ] 325 38 4 B AR T gk
profile and choice of fixed and floating interest rates. PRI E R B R - B
Je R o) 3G ) 3 g
The Group’s borrowings and receivables are carried at AR 2 A B R E R
amortised cost. TE 7 4% 4 8 AR A MR o
The Group currently does not use any interest rate A £ H Wi A A T AE
derivative contracts or other financial instruments to ] F) R AT A A 49 83 Al
hedge against its interest rate risk exposure. A T H o R R %
Z ) 2R Ja g o

At 31 March 2019, if interest rates on RMB-
denominated borrowings had been 50 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been HK$Nil
(2018: HK$600,000) lower/higher.

W2 NLE=ZH
=Z=+—H - iR E
HZEEMKET T
W5 O 56 385 - 1 B AT oAtk
SR R A8 R 4R N
Wi 0 4% dai A % DA B
MEWIC (ZF— )4
600,000¥7T) ©

(b) Credit risk (b) 15 B Fg

A 45 ) £ 0 L B 3 K
WO TE S SRAT K o Pk 32 2
15 8 JEL B ) 32 B 15 4 B 4 o

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
receivables and bank deposits. The exposures to these credit

risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

3 W M B B ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credir risk (Continued)

(c)

In respect of receivables, the Group closely monitors the
credit performances and prompt repayments from the
counterparties. The Group has policies in place to review the
recoverability of other receivables on an ongoing basis and

assess the adequacy of provision for impairment.

In respect of bank deposits, the Group has diversified its
exposures into different financial institutions. It has policies
in place to assess the credit standing of the counterparties

and financial institutions before the Group invests its assets.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of the
Group’s available cash and other interest-bearing loans that
the Group considers appropriate. Equity and other long
term financing including strategic partnerships, or strategic
joint ventures are also considered by the Group in its capital

structuring.

The Group monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity reserve
which comprises borrowing facilities and cash and cash

equivalents on the basis of expected cash flow.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the date of the consolidated statement of financial
position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months approximate
their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not

significant.

3.1 WA B AR (41)
(b) 1 LR (4)

(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BB L B AT B (%)

(Continued)
3.1 W8 B BE R &R ()

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(c) IE &M (H)

Within Between Between More than
1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years Total
—~4EW — &Rt (SRS TN L it
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TH# T T T T
As at 31 March 2019 REF-AEZA=T—H
Other payables and accruals JUA e 00 B M LR 191,150 1,484 3,507 3,507 199,648
Borrowings 8 38,689 55,758 613,141 - 707,588
229,839 57,242 616,648 3,507 907,236
As at 31 March 2018 REF-ANEZN=F—H
Other payables and accruals Al HE £ 5 B M 3 £ £ 103,135 1,250 3750 2,500 110,635
Borrowings fi & 28,800 169,074 - - 197,874
131,935 170,324 3,750 2,500 308,509
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 WA M B 4 B
The capital structure of the Group consists of owner’s equity, A AR W 2 A R A N
which include cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable A5 HERS » o A 55 3 4 T B4

to equity holders of the Company which comprises the issued

share capital and retained earnings.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue to provide returns for
shareholders and to support the Group’s stability and growth.
The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure optimal capital structure to maintain a balance between
higher shareholders™ returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 W e A B ()
(Continued)
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 3.2 A B BE A B ()
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to total 74 5 AR 8 v B AR AR Y L
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total REVEEAR o 3% R TG HOFARE B
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and VL A BT 5 o R T HR AR 3K
bank balance. Total capital is calculated as “Equity” as shown in BRI 4 B BRAT AR o AR
the consolidated statements of financial position plus net debt. BT R AR I BHR OLR P B1R B9
The gearing ratio as 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 are as (RS ] IS EB TR - R =L
follows: FEA=ZET—HERZFR—N\FEZEH

=t HMEEAMLRNT

2019 2018
ZEhE F)N\E
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T

Net debt T 430,973 116,415

Total equity HE 25 47 2,027,821 2,162,429

Net debt to equity ratio T 60 B B BE 22 1 BB R 21.25% 5.38%

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 A P2 Al

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair TERGEATFEIREZ &M T A

value, by valuation method. The different levels have been AN T AT Z 00T o A g A

defined as follows: REWMT :

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical o #H [l & 2 B A B N IS BT
assets or liabilities (level 1). ZHME(REME) (F—

&) o

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 . Bk 56 — BT R K Z A A
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly B E iR R A B
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) W (RD 1R 2 K ) Bk
(level 2). e (BT A= B E 4 ) 1800 i 743

(55 #%) -

*  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on - HHEEXKAMBEZBAZEY
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) S JE BE R BB 2 T B R
(level 3). (B A T 8 B 2 A\ 52 B0)

(=) -
55 5 BRAE 1 A R A ]

2018/2019 4E it



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3 W B A B ()

3.3 A2 Al (4)

TREGIN-F-N\F=A=1+—
H A 52 B 3% A 7 (i 5 B 2 4 ik T

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s financial instruments

that are measured at fair value at 31 March 2018:

H:
Level 3 Total
W= m
HK$’000 HK$ 000
Tt Tt
As at 31 March 2018 RoZ-NEZH=ZT—H
Assets g
Financial assets at fair value through profit 2 T AH 72 8 4H 25 5 HR 1Y
or loss - short-term investment Sl B - R 12,500 12,500

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the end of reporting period.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an

arm’s length basis.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an

instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable

market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

fm © 8115 ¥k R BT 5

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments

include:

. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments;

e Other techniques, such as inputs from recent arm’s length

transaction or discounted cash flow analysis, are used to

determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 for both years.

As at 31 March 2018, some of the Group’s financial assets are

measured at fair value.

The short-term investment measured at fair value through profit
or loss is a wealth management product, denominated in RMB,

with expected rates of return of 3.4% per annum.

The fair value is based on cash flow discounted using the expected
return based on management judgement and is within level 3 of

the fair value hierarchy.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the accounting policies described in Note
2 above, the Group has made the following judgments that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements. The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the financial position
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the Group’s assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are disclosed below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 WREEHEE (8)

(Continued)

The carrying values of the Group’s financial assets and financial 7 55 [ 4 il O A M < vl £ £ 1 R £ B
liabilities approximate to their fair values due to their short-term FCASF R A - PR 2% A R 2 M AL B HR
maturities. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes B R Y B o 4 Rl A P
is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the WP - FIRARK G B SR E
current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar 7 55 0 A0 4 ik T EL T A BUAT T 5 A
financial instruments, unless the discounting effect is insignificant. RUEBUAGS - BRIEM B 2 B B AT R

SU) 573 6 S i

(a) Income taxes (a) PifdBt

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are certain transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the year in which such determination is made. It is
the Group’s policy to recognise deferred tax assets for unused tax
losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the unused tax
losses can be utilised, based on all available evidence. Recognition
primarily depends on the Group’s expectation of future taxable
profit that will be available against which tax losses can be
utilised. The Group has measured the deferred tax relating to
the temporary differences of their investment properties using
tax rates and the tax bases that are consistent with the expected
manner of recovery of their investment properties. The details of

the assessment are disclosed in Note 23.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—LFE=H=1—HILFEZF

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Investment properties

The fair value of each investment property is individually
determined at each reporting date by independent valuer based
on a market value assessment. The valuers have relied on direct
comparison method as its primary methods. Details of the
valuation techniques and assumptions have been disclosed in

Note 15.

Business combination — purchase price allocation

The recognition of business combinations requires the excess
of the purchase price of acquisitions over the net book value of
assets acquired to be allocated to the assets and liabilities of the
acquired entity. The Group makes judgements and estimates
in relation to the fair value allocation of the purchase price. If
any unallocated portion is positive, it is recognised as goodwill,
and if negative, it is recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Impairment of construction in progress and

properties under development for sale

In determining whether allowance should be made to the Group’s
construction in progress and properties under development for
sale, the Group takes into consideration the current market
environment and the estimated net realisable value (i.e. the actual
or estimated selling price less estimated costs to complete and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sales). An allowance is
made if the estimated net realisable value is less than the carrying
amount. If the actual net realisable value on construction in
progress and properties under development held for sale is less
than expected as a result of change in market condition and/or
variation in the budgeted development cost, material allowances
for impairment losses may result if the net realisable value is less

then the carrying amount.

(b)
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(d)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

5

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the chief operating decision-maker, namely the executive
directors, for their decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business component and for their review of the performance of
that component. The business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors are principally engaged
in property investment, property development, hotel operations and

provision of financial consultancy service.

(a) Analysis of revenue by category

W gk B 23 W R

A AR J R i ] R B P RN (B
PUATE S ) Bk Z P S B Rk
3R e A Sy R BB - T % S R
B EORE TS B BAT HE R A 5 I 3 5 AL R
W 43 Z VR A T AR H PR - S A S
B % AL 7 Z A B o 1 BAT HE B
Z T8 S 5 R T AR S AL A
A BB E W R e - B
B 42 4 7l B 40 R 2

() BN Hr Z Wtk

2019 2018

SR JUE R )\4E

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#L T

Rental income AWl A 5,371 4,995

(b) Segment information

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the
services they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments
represents a strategic business unit which is subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business segments.

Summarised details of the business segments are as follows:

i)  the property investment segment engages in investment
of properties in cities of Yingkou, Jinggangshan and
Zhongshan of the PRC, the Group aim to use these

properties for rental or capital appreciation;

ii)  the property development segment engages in property

development and sales of properties in Weihai city;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

5 Wi B o ERE (41)

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) 2 ¥R ()

(b) Segment information (Continued)

iii) the hotel operations segment engages in hotel rental and

food and beverage business in Weihai city;

iv) the financial consultancy service segment engages in the
provision of financial consultancy service to assist customers

to obtain financing; and

v)  the unallocated segment comprises operations other than
those specified in (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) above and includes

that of the corporate office.

The hotel operations in Weihai is yet to commence operation
as at 31 March 2019 as it is currently under construction. The
property development operation is currently under pre-sale stage

and the relevant properties are under construction.

Capital expenditure comprise additions to investment properties
and property, plant and equipment. Segment assets consist
primarily of investment properties, properties under development
for sale, property, plant and equipment and receivables. Segment
liabilities comprise deferred tax liabilities, operating liabilities and
borrowings. Unallocated assets and liabilities mainly represent
assets and liabilities used by the corporate office, which cannot
be allocated on a reasonable basis to any segment which include

items such as cash and cash equivalents.

iii) 7 M AR 4 R R T A R
9 0 H R T R 5

iv) < ) AR 5 A A o i B
<l R AR5 > DA i B & IR
R &

v)  RAPECIEHE 4R 3G
(ii) ~ (iii) B (iv) B Bt 35 LS 2
E ¥ ARELF N LR Y
% o

REZR-NEZA=Z+—H ol
J TP SRS o R P R VI AL
ES ALPN L TREYE S YR e
H Tl JE B TR v > A B S AT A
BLgE o

BB S B ARG WA B
W B M 2 WS o o R B
LHEEWE - ERRETWE-
W3 ~ W5 B At DA % ME WOk JE AL
B o 43 A 5 208 A I
ME AR R I A KA
it 32 T2 4 ply A 4 [ 0 9 ) 6 EL
B DL 3% £ B o 23 0 B AT 0 2 38
ZHERAM BFEBERBEY
HEEH -

B BRERAE A PR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E ~F—NFE=H =+1—H ILFE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 Wtk K aE R (&)
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) &R (4)
The Directors assess the performance of the operating segments oA AT R AR A (PR R A
based on a measure of segment results, which represent, operating WP JeAT BB AR ) REAR 8 M 4y ER 3R
profit less central administrative costs. The segment results, B-BREZFE-NER T —)\4F
depreciation, and fair value gains on investment properties and ZA=Z+—H IS - W e 4
capital expenditure based on reportable segments for the years By S T A
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: RN BRI K EARB LT «
Financial
Property Property Hotel consultancy
investment development operations service Unallocated Total
A
L/EEi4 e LES 13 b B A4 REH Hst
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
T T Tl Tl T T
For the year ended BREZZ-WEZH=ZT—H
31 March 2019 4%
Segment revenue: A :
Revenue from external customers 2K HAMB % P Z i35 5,371 - - - - 5,371
Segment results VigiE ¥ 47,302 (8,845) (1,941) ) (24,935) 11,578
Finance income MEWA 4,075
Finance costs L A (888)
Profit before income tax e i 75 i 3 1 14,765
Income tax €XP€HSC Fﬁ%ﬁé Bﬁi (10)974)
Profit for the year A i A 3,791
Other segment information e B R
Depreciation i (315) (102) 22 = (672) (1,111)
Fair value gains on investment BEMEZATHER - FH
properties, net 45,462 - - - - 45,462
Additions to wE
~ Property, plant and equipment  — 4%~ BUR Kk 598 66 37,300 - - 37,964
— Investment properties B 3-L/ET 1,166 - - - = 1,166
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 W Ko i E R (B)
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) /i ER (4)
Financial
Property Property Hotel consultancy
investment development operations service Unallocated Total
A
MERH LIES 19 % 7 1R i RATHH A5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T T
For the year ended 31 March 2018 BRE-Z—-N\E=ZA=1+—H
X34
Segment revenue: gLy
Revenue from external customers A€ HAMB % F Z 45 4,995 - - - - 4,995
Segment results VgiE 7,233 (2,691) (1,561) (2,859) 110,053 110,175
Finance income WHBRA 1,333
Finance costs T A (1,898)
Profit before income tax i 7 6 2 109,610
InCOH]C tax CXPCHSC Fﬁﬁﬁ Bﬁi (895)
Profit for the year A 4 i A 108,715
Other segment information Jefb s W B
Depreciation £ (681) (38) = (218) (425) (1,362)
Fair value gains on investment REWEZ A THERN - FH
properties, net 1,335 = - - - 1,335
Additions to wE
— Property, plant and equipment  —4#1% ~ WUR K ik M
Addition wE - 481 38,970 - 600 40,051
Acquisition of subsidiary W G 4 ) = - 163,128 - - 163,128
~ Investment properties - BEME 7,828 - - - - 7,828
3 customers (year ended 31 March 2018: 3) contributed more =HREP (BREZ-NE=H
than 10% revenue of the Group. ZEF—HILEE :=Z4) mAEE
TR 1090 W 2
2019 2018
e S I 3 TR )\
Property Property
Investment Investment
segment segment
WREBERW  WERE S
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T#x
Customer A ZFA 2,018 1,554
Customer B %FB 1,948 1,999
Customer C ®FC 1,405 1,442
Total A Et 5,371 4,995
5500 BRER AR A B )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 Wtz B EEe (4)
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) ¥ E R (&)
No other single customer contributed 10% or more to the MM AL — K P A AREERET
Group’s revenue for both the years ended 31 March 2019 and F-NERE-N\E=ZA=Z1—
2018. H 1k 9 1 48 B B Rk 10% sk DA E ik
ﬁ o
The segment assets and liabilities based on reportable segments as REF-NWERZE-NFE=ZA
at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: =+ —H > Ao E 52 8
B E R AR
Financial
Property Property Hotel consultancy
investment development operations service Unallocated Total
SRR
L/EEi4 e LES 1 b W KAREH Bk
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
T T T T T T
At 31 March 2019 REZ-WE=ZA=+—H
Segment assets pigi)q:3 2,006,827 918,651 201,655 400 2,688 3,130,221
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBE&4HEY 12,357 120,139 - 477 7,350 140,323
Total assets HRE A 2,019,184 1,038,790 201,655 877 10,038 3,270,544
Segment liabilities AL (445,558) (638,105) (140,072) (187) (18,801) (1,242,723
Total liabilities A g (445,558) (638,105) (140,072) (187) (18,801) (1,242,723)
At 31 March 2018 REZZ-NEZHZ+—H
Segment assets S 2,096,078 581,756 139,443 339 3,272 2,820,888
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBE%HD 10,475 14,975 = 12,797 5,338 43,585
Total assets BRI 2,106,553 596,731 139,443 13,136 8,610 2,864,473
Segment liabilities bR (476,295) (180,888) (39,707) (203) (4,951) (702,044)
Total liabilities AR (476,295) (180,888) (39,707) (203) (4,951) (702,044)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

fm © 8115 ¥k R BT 5

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

The Group’s businesses operate in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 March 2019 and
2018 and non-current assets other than financial instruments
and deferred tax asset as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 based on

geographical area are as follows:

5 Wi B o ERE (41)

(b) 2 ¥R ()
AR5 0 T v R A o A
EMBRE-R—NER RN\
A Z A R )
43 2 We s DA R B — U B
F—\EZHZ+— H b
43 2 IR BE (el T BB AT

BRI & B BRAN) I F -
2019 2018
“R-uE SR N\E
HK$’000 HK$’000
TG T
Revenue W

PRC o 5,371 4,995

Non-current assets FEW 0 A
Hong Kong s 401 1,073
PRC r 2,173,785 2,234,313
2,174,186 2,235,386

Revenue is categorised based on the jurisdiction in which the
customers are located. Non-current assets are categorised based on

where the assets are located.

W 35 4% % 5 B AE v 5 0 O 47 5
$ o I B 4 P AE MU AT
Zig K

B BRERAE A PR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # E —F—LFE=H =—1—H IFFEF

6 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 6 A OFdl) /ZA > T8
2019 2018
“E-iE SR N\E
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T# T
Exchange (losses)/gain FE S (J4E) B (32) 16,099
Refund from consultancy fee (Note) 2 B R 2 Rk (BERE) = 5,355
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries Hi £ K A w2 A - 302
Loss on written off of property, plant and WS P 3 ~ W M B 2
equipment 18 (506) -
Impairment of other receivable balances A W8 WA K T 45 % k1L = (686)
Others oAty 88 )
(450) 21,065
Note: B 3 <
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group engaged a consultant to NEE-F—-LE=ZH=+—HILEE
perform certain engineering consultancy services in respect of its investment AR A [ W 5 — 4 R IR b LR B
properties in Zhongshan. The consultancy fee, amounted to RMB5,200,000 S 4R Bt T R B S o LR B AR
(equivalent to HK$6,188,000) was recognised as operating expenses. On 5,200,000 ( #H % #*6,188,000% 76 ) € e 72
31 January 2018, this consultant refunded RMB4,500,000 (equivalent to BREREL RN B’ NE—H=+—H">
HK$5,355,000) to the Group as a result of a change in service scope and the FH 7 IR 765 S 28] 4 ) e A 4 B e s 4% 1k B 7Y
Group’s decision to terminate the service contract with the consultant. R A ] - 3% B AR R A\ K% 4,500,000

J6 (FHE7%5,355,0009 70 ) T AC4E 4] -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

STAFF COSTS 7 @ B AR

The staff costs disclosed below are for all employees and include all TR AR B 2 R B A - B2
Directors’ emoluments (Note 13(a)). MBER A (KMFE130)) °
2019 2018
ZF-hE ZFNE
HK$°000 HK$’000
T il
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits S 4 S At e 391 U B A R 14,001 13,063
Contributions to defined contribution plans R REARL R A 697 1,013
14,698 14,076
All employees of the subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC who AR O i) A5 o IR B B R 4 W) BT A RS R
are PRC citizens participate in employee social security plans enacted AR 2R E 2R T 2
in the PRC, including pension, medical and other welfare benefits, 18 B e PR B EE 31 o 5% 2551 3 i BOURF 1%
which are organised and administrated by the government authorities. B R B S B IR AR~ R
According to the relevant regulations, the Group contributes on e Al AR A o 32 BEAH BR BB - AR 4 ] 49
a monthly basis based on certain percentages of the salaries of the AMEREFHEZH THAKRS T
employees, subject to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the labor and B At 1 A B B AR BE AR (MR A
social welfare authorities. Contributions to the plans are expensed as T EFR) o it # 4R 2 B ROR A A IR
incurred. B
SR BRI A PR 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

8 FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS), NET 8 BNEWA S (ERA) » HH
2019 2018
ZR-JuE R )\4E
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# L T
Interest expense: A BB 3%
Accretion of consideration and other AR T Ho At FE A 3k T 2
payables (Note 22) FEFTE R (B 5E22) (477) (1,898)
Interest on entrusted loan Tt ERZ A B (36,113) (20,260)
Interest on bond payable JE A 65 27 2 1) B (411) -
(37,001) (22,158)
Less: Capitalised interest il ;B AL B, 36,113 20,260
Finance costs N9, %N (888) (1,898)
Interest income: FIEUA
Interest income from other receivables Al JE Wik JE 2 A B A - 361
Bank interest income RAT R B A 130 140
Interest income from short term investment WEHEZ M B RA 128 -
Interest income from loan receivable JRE Wi Bk =2 A B A
(Note 24) (B 5E24) 3,817 832
Finance income BB 4,075 1,333
Net finance income/(costs) BB OfA) i3 8 3,187 (565)
9 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9 B B £ B il
Profit before income tax for the year is arrived at after charging: A5 P9 Bk BT A A T 6 ) 9 SR AT BR DA R 4%
BB
2019 2018
R -JUE R )N\FE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#x Tt
Auditor’s remuneration % BBl T 4 1,350 1,450
Minimum lease payments for properties REMBHTYRZ
under operating leases I R R 9 R 7,116 5,830
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

10 P 3 B¢ B X
B A R Y T R X B &

comprehensive income represents: LECR

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of

2019 2018
“R-E ZFN\E
HKS$’000 HK$’000
TG Tt
Current tax HIB Y TNl
PRC i
— Current year — R4 B 821 1,389
— Overprovision in prior years — VLRI 4 JSE 4% 2 435 (1,212) -
(391) 1,389
Deferred taxation 95 4E B I 11,365 (494)
10,974 895

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate

AR 1 I3 i 4 B T i ) -2 5 B 0
ARG AT RS Z MBI BERE 2

applicable to the results of the consolidated companies as follows: PR BLA 2 R
2019 2018
—F-JuE ENE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T Tt
Profit before income tax Wi Pt 45 o T i ) 14,765 109,610
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to 59 FH T 4% R 5 4 T RE T 3
profits in the respective jurisdictions i A 2 H B G Z B 5,630 17,343
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AL A BH 2 2 il I 5 B 623 514
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue RPN Z B B (1) (21,843)
Overprovision in prior years VA il 4 JBE 4% BE #8845 (1,212) -
Deferred tax assets not recognised AR T 8 2 0 A o T 5,934 4,881
Income tax expense Jit 45 i B 32 10,974 895
SR BRI A PR 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10 Fi £ BE b 32 (%)
The applicable rate of Hong Kong profits tax is 16.5% (2018: 16.5%). BB ZHEHABRE16.5% (=%
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax (2018: Nil) has been made —J\AE 1 16.5% ) o B A 48 B 4 1 f: fi
for the year as the Group has no assessable profit for the year (2018: JERBLGF (T — )\4F: ) > BUR AR
Nil). Provision for China corporate income tax is calculated based on AR NP S R AV R AR B W B (ZF
the statutory tax rate of 25% (2018: 25%) on the assessable income of — J\AE ) o v B4 SE B A5 Bl Bt A T AR
each of the Group’s PRC entities. PR A AR T 45 v R R R M A\

EBR25% (ZF— )\4E:25% ) 515 -

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 B )B4 A
(a) Basic earnings per ordinary share is calculated by dividing the (a) BB B 2 FE A A TG DLAE AR
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the AR RER R A NEA B BRI B
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the AT e 2 o R - 35 R AR -
year.
2019 2018
ZF - ZFNE
HK$’000 HK$°000
TR i3t
Profit for the year attributable to owner of Ao E AN AN AR R R A -
the Company, HK$’000 T#T 3,791 108,716
Weighted average number of ordinary LB AT 5 7 B 2 R 7 2 8
shares in issue 3,430,000,000  3,110,465,753
Basic earnings per ordinary share, HK cents T I 8 e BE AR Z A > WAl 0.11 3.50
(b) The calculation of diluted earnings per ordinary share is based on (b) R EBEZ MR Z 5T
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company and A i) B AN AN A A R R %G
the weighted average number of ordinary shares used, which is BB SO R R 2 e AR LR IR
the same for calculating basic earnings per ordinary share above, Pt 2 R T 3 38 Ji o HE 1 £ O
as the Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary R FREAAERAA A ERE R
shares arising from share options for the two years ended 31 —~hERZE-NE=ZA=Z+—
March 2019 and 2018. FI 1k 9 A 4 J3E SN S0 5% B M e
A 85 A i R ) 0 T
12 DIVIDEND 12 BB
The Board of Directors do not recommend payment of final dividend FHELAEHRRBERE_ZUE=
for the year ended 31 March 2019 (year ended 31 March 2018: Nil). A=+—HILEERIRE (BRE_Z

—NEZH=Z+—H IR ) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—LFE=H=1—HILFEZF

13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 13 33 2 1 F) B A 4
DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) HHEBERHITRABRZME
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is set HLER LR EHITBANEB Z 5
out below: mT:
For the year ended 31 March 2019: RE-Z-NALE=ZH=Z1T—HIE
1Y) 3

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

A AN DU RGBSk JERER A 1) S5 B e DRI 1 T M 2 2

Emoluments paid
or receivable in

respect of director’s
other services in
connection with
the management of
Employer’s the affairs of the
contribution to Company
retirement benefit or its subsidiary
Name Fees Salaries scheme undertaking Total
At g Ok B
BRAR 5
JEIEIS 2 o
Z e ss
WA A8 2 i T M
134 e e TERIT ZME A
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
Executive directors BT H S
Hung Man (Note a) HEA (Mita) 16 - - - 16
Li Yong Jun (Note b) ZKE (Hitb) 1,367 - = = 1,367
Liu Hong Shen LR 600 - - - 600
Meng Jin Long Hi 600 - - - 600
Yeung Man, Simon (Note )~ B3l (M ikc) 1,434 - 18 - 1,452
Wong Hoi Kin (Note d) R (Mritd) 670 - 14 - 684
Independent non-executive B
directors
Long Tao ik 200 - - - 200
Ren Guo Hua fEr 200 - - - 200
Chen Fang B 200 - - - 200
5,287 - 32 - 5,319
LSRRI A L
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # E —F—LFE=H =—1—H IFFEF

13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 13 WA Z /A B 4 (81)
DIRECTORS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EHFRIBEHITBEARZHE
(Continued) (%)
For the year ended 31 March 2018: BEZZF-NFE=H=+—H1t
AR JE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

2NN S CRRBACA v S JERERA 7)) 5 b SR 6 1 A kMBI 2 &

Emoluments paid

or receivable in
respect of director’s
other services in
connection with
the management

Employer’s of the affairs of
contribution to the Company
retirement benefit or its subsidiary
Name Fees Salaries scheme undertaking Total
REHRBEER
EHANE K
8y PSS
Z Al e B
BRI 3T 32 8 i €A 3 JE W
i34 KA e EX3 ¢ e ik
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T#x T#x T#x T#x Ti#x
Executive directors BrEF
Meng Jin Long HAH 900 - - = 900
Liu Hong Shen LIEIRS 900 = = = 900
Yeung Man, Simon L 1,422 120 18 - 1,560
Independent non-executive B 3 JE H 17 # %
directors
Long Tao i 200 - - - 200
Ren Guo Hua {1 200 - - - 200
Chen Fang B 200 = = = 200
3,822 120 18 . 3,960
Note: i 5
(a) Ms. Hung Man was appointed as the Chairman and Chief @ BHLER_FZ—-RLE=ZA
Executive Officer of the Company on 28 March 2019. T\ H O AT R AR A H] A2 e
AT -
(b) Mr. Li Yong Jun was appointed as the Executive Director and vice (b) ZFXRERER_-T—/)NFEHLH=
chairman of the Company on 3 May 2018. H 3 22 4 7% AR 2 W] 94T 3 S e ml
) o
(¢)  Mr. Yeung Man, Simon was resigned on 28 March 2019. (o BEHEER_-F—NLHE=ZA
ZI)\HEHE-
(d)  Mr. Wong Hoi Kin was appointed as an Executive Director on (d) HEEEBRBER T /)NELAL
9 July 2018 and resigned on 28 March 2019. HEZERPTERER F
U U H BHE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—LFE=H=1—HILFEZF

13 3 2 4 A A 2 (%)

13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

The Company’s executive directors represent all of the
Company’s chief executives. Accordingly, no separate disclosure
in respect of the remuneration of the chief executives is made in

the financial statements.

No emoluments were paid to any director as an inducement to
y
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office during the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any termination

benefits during the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making

available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’

services (2018: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

As at 31 March 2019, there was no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings arrangements in favour of directors, controlled bodies

corporate by and connected entities with such directors (2018:

Nil).

(a)

(b)

(o)

(d)

o B dn m AT BN R4
(%)

AT AT R TIA A T A
TTBON B o TR - B 5 93 7 O 2
AT BRI R AT BON L A o

RBEEZZ-NE=ZA=Z+—HI
AR > AC AN W) S S8 i A 2 o S A
A T <6 > A1 o 28 5 400 55 i A AR 2
HEYIN N L Y R R
Fy BB (=% — N4 fE) -

o 2 2k O Bl A A
RBRE-ZR-NEZA=+—H
1A - RS 3 2 MO B IO

A 2 1k R R R A (= — V4
) o

U 3 5 W o 3 =05
A Z R

PEREZZ-E=ZA=Z+—HIk
AR JIE > ZAC AR [ S B 0 L o R
AL 58 =07 AR (ZF— N\
) -

CL DS & AP35 5 & ¥
0 2 0 I e B 2 5
ZHEMBZ A X 1
FEk B Fofib 22 5 2 R
MR- NAEZAZ—H -
DT - 52 2 e ) 2 o T
B B B A A
SE ORI 5 % (
TV )

B BRERAE A PR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 13 WA Z /A B 4 (81)

DIRECTORS (Continued)

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions, (e) HHRRY RHZA LN
arrangements or contracts 2?*%%
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in 2 4 [ NE S 0 A 4 [ S 5 BT L R
relation to the Group’s business to which the Group was a party R Gy~ TP T A K - R % R
and in which a director of the Group had a material interest, R R R A K P AGE & A
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or e A EORRERS VR E
at any time during the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil). ZE -NAEEAZ T —HIEFEN

R BAE AR IR 3 (=
T )4 ) o

(f) Five highest paid individuals ) hABmH AL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the BEZF-NE=ZHA=+—HILE
Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 comprise 3 directors B AREE AR FHALBRE=
and 2 employees (2018: comprise 3 directors and 2 employees). HEERFARE (ZF—)\4:
The details of the emoluments payable to the 2 employees (2018: BRE=AFFERWMAER) -F N
2) during the year are presented below: EMZEW G (ZF— )\F:WHE)

B2t 25mT:

2019 2018
e ZFE NS
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tl T il
Salaries and other short-term 4 B oAb B IR B AR A
employee benefits 2,099 2,237
Pension costs — defined contribution plan TR 4 i AR — S AL kG 20 36
2,119 2,273
Number of individuals
AN
2019 2018
e ZFE NS
Emoluments band T 4 4 [
HK$1 — HK$500,000 1% I8 —500,000% JG - -
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001 76 — 1,000,000 % 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 76 — 1,500,000% 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 JC — 2,000,000%% 7T 1 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

14 P93 - Wi s B v i

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Computer,
office
Furniture and equipment Leasehold Motor  Construction
fixtures ~ and machinery ~ improvement vehicles in progress Total
EW hAS
BIREEE R RES A EE T ERTR B
HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000
Ti#x T T#x Ti#x Tix T
Year ended 31 March 2018 REZZ— N\
ZAZT—-HIERE
Opening net book amount AR 35 3,342 533 952 - 4,862
Currency translation differences AN I £ % - 337 10 25 12,567 12,939
Additions e = 4 600 477 38,970 40,051
Acquisition of a subsidiary W — [ Y 0 (M RE18)
(Note 18) - - - - 163,128 163,128
Reclassified to property under AR EGERRTYE
development for sale (Note 16) (FaE16) - - - - (75,232) (75,232)
Charge for the year L5 (32) (277) (543) (510) = (1,362)
Closing net book amount A 5K i AL 3 3,406 600 944 139,433 144,386
As at 31 March 2018 REZ-NMEEHA=ET—H
Cost A 156 5,053 1,847 2,874 139,433 149,363
Accumulated depreciation PHEE (153) (1,647) (1,247) (1,930 - (4,977)
3 3,406 600 944 139,433 144,386
Year ended 31 March 2019 RE-Z-hE
EAZF—HIEE
Opening net book amount ) T 1A 3 3,406 600 944 139,433 144,386
Currency translation differences I - (222) - (30) (8,901) 9,153)
Additions e 149 66 - 449 37,300 37,964
Written off 34 - (506) - - - (506)
Charge for the year L5 (26) (220) (200) (665) - (1,111)
Closing net book amount AR e i ¥ 126 2,524 400 698 167,832 171,580
As at 31 March 2019 RE=FB-WE=ZA=+—H
Cost A 1,384 4,349 1,829 3,287 167,832 178,681
Accumulated depreciation PHEE (1,258) (1,825) (1,429) (2,589) - (7,101)
126 2,524 400 698 167,832 171,580
55 BRER AR T A B A )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15 &P ¥

2019 2018
=2 ZF )4

HK$’000 HK$ 000

T T-#

At beginning of year AR 2,091,000 1,881,563
Addition WwE 1,166 7,828
Fair value gains, net N FEBARF) - FH 45,462 1,335
Exchange difference [ 56, 2% % (135,022) 200,274
At end of year AR 2,002,606 2,091,000

oA S L5 4 L 51 D MO 2
S VA 2 4 2 TR 4 F
fE O A

The Group’s property interests held under operating lease to earn
rental income or for capital appreciation are measured using the fair

value model.

REF-JUEZA=+—H o AREENE
AT TR A SR A 15 B DR B RSB 5 A0 T
fE(ZF—)\F: ) -

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has no unprovided contractual

obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2018: Nil).

Amount recognised in profit or loss for investment A7 B B S e R A 1 2 1 2
properties
2019 2018
—FJuEE SR N\E
HKS$’000 HK$’000
TR T it

Rental income 4 WA 5,371 4,995
Direct operating expenses from properties that KB EEMEBRADED

generated rental income HEE R S (98) (820)
Direct operating expenses from property that K I A g AR AL A

did not generate rental income L E MR -2 5 (59) (39)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15 Bk (1)
Investment properties Relationship of
held by the Group in the Valuation Significant ~ unobservable 2019 2018
consolidated statement of Fair value technique(s) and unobservable  inputs for fair Amount Amount
financial position hierarchy key input(s) input(s) value HK$’000 HK$’000
AFER ZF-0E ZF-AE
B A ISR DL A4 B ERAWBW A BEA W 2%
L3RS KPS B R ERARY BAZY  HUZHE Ti#n T
Property in Yingkou (located Level 3 Direct comparison method Adopted unit The higher 98,330 105,125
at Zhuoyue Building, =4 B rates of the adopted unit
Kunlun Main Street West, comparable  rates, the higher
Bayuquan District, Yingkou The key input is: properties and the fair value
City, Liaoning Province, the EEMAZEA: adjust to reflect (W73
People’s Republic of China) the conditions LAnAES
BT (AR b3 AR Adopted unit rates and locations o
T s 7 A B TR A B of the subject A TR
RN RGN ) properties
Mk gmEZ
58751}
R
S AF: th o
DL B
LR
R B i B
Property in Zhongshan (located ~ Level 3 Direct comparison method Adopted unit  The higher the 1,840,321 1,917,500
at Daxing Hao Yuan, No. 69 $E=# HikILB S rates of the adopted unit
Zhongshan Third Road, East comparable  rates, the higher
District, Zhongshan City, The key input is: properties and the fair value
Guangdong Province, the FEBAZY S adjust to reflect TR
People’s Republic of China) the conditions EAnAES
SIS0V NP Adopted unit rates and locations R
G T SR ER A B of the subject AVHEME
ZHeoERE) properties
R
oA
BRI -
S A th
DA B
B L/E =4
R Bt
S ERERAE A IR A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

x0T FS IR R 5L (@

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # E —F—LFE=H =—1—H IFFEF

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15 Be¥EP 3k (B)
Investment properties Relationship of
held by the Group in the Valuation Significant ~ unobservable 2019 2018
consolidated statement of Fair value technique(s) and unobservable  inputs for fair Amount Amount
financial position hierarchy key input(s) input(s) value HK$’000 HK$’000
AR ZR-hE ZR-AE
B A IR R O A 5 EAASTBA  AwEWEA & &H
H¥mE RVEES SRR ERARY BAZRY  BUZHE T#L T#
Property in Jinggangshan Level 3 Direct comparison method Adopted unit  The higher the 63,955 68,375
(located at No. 1 Lan Hua B=H BB rates of the adopted unit
Ping Road, Ciping Town, comparable  rates, the higher
Jinggangshan City, Jian City, The key inputs are: properties and the fair value
Jiangxi Province, the People’s FEGAEYR adjust to reflect k73
Republic of China) the conditions BLALE R
S NINE/E AETWALE YNGR Adopted unit rates and locations A
SERBT P8 5 Ll SR 1 TR 4 B AL R of the subject AT E
S B AL 7 315 ) properties
Mk gmEZ
[SE7¥
AL FTR -
S AF: th o
DL B
THmEZ
IR A B
The Group has measured the deferred tax relating to the temporary % £ [ O 1 P00 B T W I % S B
differences of these investment properties using the tax rates and the R R BB KBS - 5 X
tax bases that are consistent with the expected manner of recovery of I Y 3 W IR 2 R B 2 A A
these investment properties. I o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

15 BL¥PE ()

BB — B S8 L kS AR =
RO PR o AL B I 20T 3 i 2 T B e
ZEHOMWERD R REEHNE
7% BEAE A R o DAl 1 vk 2 5 2 A
58 W 0 BT 7 ORAE M Al T SR IRAS

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Level 3 fair values of investment properties have been generally derived
using the sales comparison approach. Selling prices of comparable
properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key
attributes such as property size and quality. The most significant
input into this valuation approach is price per square metre and the

construction cost estimate.
There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year.

The fair value measurement information for the investment properties

in accordance with HKFRS 13 as at 31 March 2019 is set out below.

(a) Valuation basis

As at 31 March 2019, the fair values of the investment properties
located in cities of Zhongshan, Yingkou and Jinggangshan have
been arrived on the basis of valuation carried out on that date by
independent qualified professional valuers not connected to the
Group. The valuation of Zhongshan, Yingkou and Jinggangshan
was arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction

prices for similar properties at similar location.

(b) Leasing arrangements

Investment properties located in Yingkou and Jinggangshan, PRC
are leased to tenants under long-term operating leases with rentals

payable annually.

Al 4L 00 7 4 P Sl 06 4 )

e T U 5 0 U 0 3B DT
BN F A A2
A EERHR BT

(a)

(b)

CRCE- 2

REZR-NEZA=Z+—H AR
LT 8 i R R L 2 B
Y3 Z O SF B 7 ik R B A 4R ] S
JHE o 2L 2 S A S Al i
T % H AT Z AL o rp il T
B 0T R I B i A S Z Al TS
2 MBI B Z B 2 W 5
AL M B

i

(08U = R S T RT
EWRIIMBEREEMEMT
R > 354 WA 4

B BRERAE A PR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # E —F—LFE=H =—1—H IFFEF

16 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 16 fe BRI Y%
FOR SALE
HK$’000
Tl
As at 1 April 2017 W —EENT—H =
Additions wE 89,602
Acquisition of a subsidiary WA B — [ Bt B8 2 ) 375,072
Reclassified from property, plant and H¥% - WE K
equipment (Note a) T A (k) 75,232
Exchange difference [ 50, 2 28,895
As at 31 March 2018 R_E-NE=ZH=+—H 568,801
Additions s 226,051
Exchange difference iEE 58, 2 B (36,089)
As at 31 March 2019 RoF-NUAEZAZT—H 758,763
Note: Bff 5t
(a) Asat 31 March 2018, the Group changed its intention on the purpose of (@ WMoZ)EZA=1—H AREEN
carparks and certain portion of the commercial area in the Weihai project FUh v T JE B v 2 I I L A
to sale. Therefore, related net carrying amounts have been reclassified T o 2 7 T 5 A S o IR U > AH B
from property, plant and equipment to properties under development for MR T V- B W 3~ R B R R
sale. HErEERYE-
(b) The amount of properties under development for sale and expected (b) TR A O — 45 DA AR Wi Il i 4 B %
to be recovered after more than one year is HK$758,763,000 (2018: Ji iy SE K IE 758,763,000 00 ( =&
HK$568,801,000). — J\4E 1 568,801,000 7T ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RO R @
For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

17 W& A W
PFEIN _-F—NWE=H=1+—H=Z

17 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2019.

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

Principal activities and

FEM A E S

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered capital

Proportion of
ordinary shares

Name kind of legal entity place of operations and debt securities  held by the Group (%)
IR CHAT A/ YA A4 T o
#ik LS syl FEEHRB RS o 2 B Be il (%)
Crown Global Opportunity Investment Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 1,000 ordinary shares of *100%
Limited i JE T PR T B M US$1 each
EEEHEIRAARAF Limited liability company 1,00018¢ 55 M i
AT 19702 Eil i
Crown International Investment Corp. Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 1,000 ordinary shares of 100%
¥ JE 70 T B M US$1 each
Limited liability company 1,000/8¢ 75 Mt i
HAF 19702 il i
Crown Entertainment Corporation Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 1,000,000 ordinary shares of *100%
SRR A RA R i P T i P i 4 M USS$1 each
Limited liability company 1,000,000/ 5 1t i {8
AT 102 il
Crown Finance Holdings Limited Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 10,000 ordinary shares of *100%
L3 4l 4 IR AT L e A 8 4 US$1 each
Limited liability company 10,0008 4 ¢ I fi
HIRAR 1R 2 B Im I
Crown Tianhe Resources Limited Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
SRR WA R i e B B M 10,0009 7
Limited liability company
HIRAF
World Opal Investment Limited Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
HREEARAR Hil TR E R 10,0007
Limited liability company
HIAR
Crown Land Corp. Limited Hong Kong Provision of administrative HK$10,000 100%
BHERILHERRA A ik services in Hong Kong 10,000% 7
Limited liability company TER ST BOR T
AT
Zhongshan Hualian Industrial PRC Property investment in PRC Registered capital of 100%
Development Corporation Limited * Ll B ENE HK$50,000,000
o oLy T S PR A A W) 2 Wholly owned [ERUBSEN
foreign enterprise 50,000,000%773
Bhit B 5
Crown International Resort Limited Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
FRAE AR AT Hil T 75 B 7 1 M 10,000 72
Limited liability company
HIAR
SR BRI A PR 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # E —F—LFE=H =—1—H IFFEF

17 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

17 W& A ¥ (4)

Principal activities and

Particulars of issued

share capital/registered capital

Proportion of
ordinary shares

Name kind of legal entity place of operations and debt securities  held by the Group (%)
IR CRAT A/ YA A4 T i
#ifk B s FHEEHRB RIS o 0 Z 5B Bl (%)
3 A A PRC  Provision of financial consultancy Registered capital of 100%
i service in PRC RMBS50,000,000
Limited liability company 7 H R R B L ik fit A
ARAH A R50,000,00076
“U” Inns (Yingkou) Hotel Management PRC Property investment in PRC Registered capital of 100%
Corporation Limited. * i il ka4 EE HK$25,600,000
TRIZAS (8 1) 0 05 45 BT L2 W) © Wholly owned GRUNEN
foreign enterprise 25,600,003 7C
OhiE A
“U” Inns & Hotel (Jing Gang Shan Shi) PRC Hotel investment in PRC Registered capital of 100%
Limited * H A o RO RMBS50,000,000
TR A BRI (I 17 ) A R ] 4 Wholly owned kA
foreign enterprise A JR50,000,0007E
o Ak
Jumbo China Investment Group Led Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 2,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
4 Tt T T R i A 5 M of US$1 each
Limited liability company 2,000,000/5¢ % Mt i i
HIRAT 1RIE 2 I
Jumbo China Investment Led Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
B RAT A B (B g fideils 10,0004 76
limited liability company
HIRAR
AL R R R A ] PRC Hotel and property Registered capital of 100%
4 investment in PRC RMB425,620,000
Wholly owned e BB 0 A 3 Ak fif A
foreign enterprise A R#425,620,00078
i Ak
* Shares held directly by the Company. JBeA B A A W] H A ©

their Chinese names.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

fm © 8115 ¥k R BT 5

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

18 BUSINESS COMBINATION

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 13 September 2016
(the “Agreement Date”) (together with a series of supplementary
agreements dated 13 December 2016, 13 March 2017, 13 April 2017,
30 June 2017 and 31 August 2017) entered into between Crown
International Investment Corp. (“Crown International Investment”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Good
Wealth Holdings Limited (“Good Wealth”). Good Wealth agreed
to sell and Crown International Investment agreed to purchase the
entire issued share capital of Jumbo China Investment Group Ltd
(together with its subsidiary, the “Jumbo China Group”), a company
incorporated in Samoa, for the issue and allotment, credited as fully
paid, of a total of 260,000,000 new shares (the “Consideration
Shares”) of the Company. The principal activities of the Jumbo China

Group is property development and investment in the PRC.

On Agreement Date, the number of Consideration Shares was
determined with reference to the Company’s then share price, with
the total consideration amounted to HK$500,000,000. As a result of
the delay on the completion of this transaction, the Consideration
Shares were issued at HK$1.29 per share on 14 September 2017
(the “Completion Date”), with the consideration amounted to
HK$335,400,000, net of issuance costs. As a result of the decrease
in share price between the Agreement Date and the Completion
Date, a gain on bargain purchase amounted to HK$116,001,000 was
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of comprehensive

income for the year ended 31 March 2018.

18 5P

H#% Crown International Investment Corp.
([ Crown International Investment ])
(AR AW Z M2 E M E e ) '/
Good Wealth Holdings Limited ([ Good
Wealth ]) A —F— A NHFJLH +=H
(T b B L) AT o 2 B K ok (R
FAAMA _F—-AET+_A+=H0"
ZE-bELE=ZA+=H-ZF—tH
WA+=H-_"F—-tEAH=1+H
BB —LENA=Z+—HZ—FF
i 75 15 ) > Good WealthlF] & H £ i
Crown International Investment[F 72 i B
Jumbo China Investment Group Lied (##
[ 3L i} J&§ 2> B 546 2% [ Jumbo China%g
1) O g e e G i oL 2 AR ) 2 &
HR AT IR A - AR DABRAT B L B 5 3
260,000,000/8 AR %5 2 2 A F Hi
JBety (AR 1) A © Jumbo China
S 2 BT T vh B S Sk
RRE o

P RERBZHE RS
A\ E] H R AR A E o SR 2
500,000,000% JC © H1 1R #% R 5 Z 56 B At
B> RERp R —F—tEIA+H
(T78 ) B W 1) DL B .29% o 8547 >
R A8 #335,400,000% 76 ( F11 B 35 47 B
AR o | 9 R H OB 58 B H O 2 B
BB RS F ARSRIRERE R — )\4F
EHAET—HIEREEZ GG 2 mREE
it w2 AL 3 1 2 WL #5116,001,0009 T ©

B BRERAE A PR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # E —F—LFE=H =—1—H IFFEF

18 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 18 B0 5 BF (#)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the Jumbo Jumbo China%E [ 7 58 5% H ] Z 7 5% 7l
China Group as at the Completion Date were as follows: HiERARZAFHEHNT

Fair value

recognised on

Notes acquisition
T VG Dl Y W 2
B Rk Z A
HK$000
Tt
Property, plant and equipment L ENY N & 14 163,128
Properties under development for sale (ElE 9Lk E S 16 375,072
Cash and bank balances B4 B BRAT A5 B 8,939
Other receivables HAth JE Wk I 96,056
Entrusted loan ZRERK (175,500)
Other payables and accruals o Ath A K 0E % RE BT B AR (7,099)
Deferred income tax liabilities AR IE T A3 B A5 (9,195)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value R Gk ) B AR
BATE 451,401
Satisfied by: A7
Consideration Shares issued and allotted, BT R EARI MR Z
credited as fully paid A By 335,400
116,001
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

18 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 18 X85 & BF (&)
The Group incurred transaction costs of approximately HK$802,000 7 4 T 7 Ot T WA I o O E A #9802,000
for this acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and are WILZ G o G R TG BA TR K
included in other expenses in the profit and loss. 85 > WEt AR fi 2 F Al B 2 P o
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the business combination is EHBAHZBEWMBSIWT -
as follows:
HKS$’000
5t
Cash consideration paid A Bl AR =
Cash and bank balances acquired Wi B 4 T SR AT 45 8,939
Net cash and cash equivalents acquired and WA B 3 5 A\ N ) 2
included in cash flows from investing activities BeERB B & RIE&E
T 8,939
E
19 OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS 19 U Afib MOk B ~ TR A ok B B
AND DEPOSITS L
2019 2018
- FN\E
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T#L T# 0
Non-current B
Rental deposits A 4 1,467 1,209
1,467 1,209
Current bR
Other receivables JHC Al R Wk T 9,200 378
Prepayments and deposits (Note) TEAT R JE e 44 (Bi5E) 159,041 1,744
168,241 2,122
169,708 3,331
Note: B Rl =
Prepayments and deposits mainly included prepayments in the amount of T A AR T B e 4 2 A A AR T B A AR
HK$157,844,000 (equivalent to RMB135,002,000) (2018: Nil) made by 157,844,000% 70 (#H# 7 A\ R 135,002,000
the Group which represent prepayments for procuring the acquisition of a J6) (ZF— N4 - f8) - % R BB
potential property development project in Weihai city, PRC. The amounts I i T Y — SRV AR A 36 8RR L F B TSR
will be transferred to properties under development when the Group obtains TE o i A S ) WA R T b S S A i
contractual usage rights of the relevant lands and properties. FHRE s - % S5 Ak I W m R 3 o
B BRER A A B A ]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

19

20

OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS
AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of other receivables and deposits approximate

their fair values and are denominated in the following currencies:

19 il BE Bk 95~ AT kO K
4 (8)

At 8 K T I 2 4 2 MR TG S P
FA > 36 DL 5 £ S

2019 2018

R JUE FB—)\F

HK$’000 HK$ 000

T TF#o0

HK$ Wt 2,025 1,790
RMB N 167,683 1,541
169,708 3,331

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCE AND CASH 20 Z B4 84 &5 6 e B
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERBLESEY

2019 2018

—EZ—JuE 2 )\4E

HK$’000 HK$ 000

T T-#5E

Bank balances SRAT 45 Bk 140,318 43,584

Cash on hand FHHB 4 5 1

140,323 43,585

Restricted bank balances 2 PR ) 4 F SR AT 45 0% 26,750 —

The carrying amounts of the restricted bank balance and cash and cash
equivalents approximate their fair values and are denominated in the

following currencies:

52 PR ) 15 1 SR AT A 6 DA I B4 R B4 5
T4y 2 M Vi L B B AH A - 36 DA T B
F WA

2019 2018
ZR®—JUE )4

HK$’000 HK$ 000

T Fon

HK$ Wt 7,350 15,130
RMB N 159,723 27,983
United States dollars FI0 = 472
167,073 43,585
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

fm © 8115 ¥k R BT 5

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—LFE=H=1—HILFEZF

20 RESTRICTED BANK BALANCE AND CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$159,723,000 (2018: HK$27,983,000) respectively are
denominated in RMB and deposited with banks in the PRC. RMB
is not a freely convertible currency in the international market. The
conversion of RMB into foreign currencies and remittance of RMB out
of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of exchange control

promulgated by the government of the PRC.

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THOUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

20 3% BB SR AT &5 Bk B Bl

& R Bl S (4)

i s s = E] S0 5] o)
159,723,000% 70 ( =& — )\ 4 :
27,983,000%5 70 ) Z Bl 4 K Bl & S EH W
VAN B W 5 8 b ) Z SR AT A 8 o
HET > AR A 7E B B i 8 1 oG
e o A5 N B B4 2 AN RO N IR W
H e [ 28 5% v (B 1B AR A 2 A R A R
HI) K B3 451 Fr B3 i

21 A TEEBHRIIKZ

4 ik ¥

2019 2018
—FJuE R N\E
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#L T#T
Short-term investment measured at fair value HAPHBEBEGETEZ
through profit or loss TR LE a2y - 12,500

The short-term investment measured at fair value through profit or
loss is a wealth management product, denominated in RMB, which
expected rate of return of 3.4% at maturity. The return on wealth
management product is not guaranteed, hence its contractual cash
flows do not qualify for solely payments of principal and interest.
Therefore, it is measured at fair value through profit or loss. The
investment was matured and the proceed has been received during

the year.

BATVHEBZREDG R EYRER
—JE AN B G A B E - R E
IR 4 A0 [T S R 23,49 o BB Y
I #  [m] e ol AR - WO A A B
SRR A E AR A A R
AEL o B 0 - B % 3% 4 T E R 4R
smat BN ZRECHHHAKEC
N

B BRERAE A PR A 7
2018/2019 4E it




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # E —F—LFE=H =—1—H IFFEF

EN
22 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 22 Al A ok 0 B Mt £ 4
2019 2018
SR OE SR
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T#T T#IT
Non-current kP )
Leasehold improvements payable S A5 AT 3K IH 6,608 6,623
6,608 6,623
Current B 39
Construction cost payables JRE A+ 8 5 i AR 150,328 36,102
Other payables (Note a) JEAth JBE A 3R JE (BB k) 26,728 41,826
Contract liabilities (Note b) HHIAME (FEED) 29,590 =
Others Ho A 14,877 23,957
221,523 101,885
228,131 108,508
Note Bt 5
(a) The amount represented payable to the vendor of M LL T 3 I B 3% b #% () #% K I et W S o L T EE O R SR B
F B2 7] (“Zhongshan Hualian”), Sino Oasis Oversea Limited (“Sino FEAT Lo v (7o by 32 0B | ) g > 5 IhE
Oasis”) upon acquisition of Zhongshan Hualian. The amount was in % J7 Sino Oasis Oversea Limited ([ Sino
relation to construction service fees paid on behalf of Zhongshan Hualian Oasis | ) AR L 35 = A5 1y e S8 M % &
by Sino Oasis. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable M JE A Sino OasisZ 3K JH o 7% sk JH 4% J&
according to the agreed payment terms. FRAT ~ S 8 e 14 B A A ko R O o
(b) The contract liabilities arising from pre-sales of properties of Weihai (b) BUBHAWEEEELENGHAME - #
project. The balance represents the increase in contract liabilities as a BEAREE_Z-E=ZA=T—
results of receipt of advance from pre-sales of properties amounting to A k4R R YRR HE - B
HK$29,590,000 during the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil). A # A B A029,590,000% 78 (%
—J\AE ) o
The carrying amounts of the other payables and accruals approximate JH Al JRE AT sk T % M £ 2 R v B
their fair values and are denominated in the following currencies: A PAEARE - W DL B 8 W R A
2019 2018
ZEZ U R N\G
HK$°000 HK$’O(E)
T#0 T
HKS$ oo 4,888 4,089
RMB AR 223,243 104,419
228,131 108,508
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

> 4
23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND 23 3B %E i 14 B W i L1 A
LIABILITIES
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a E G ¥ RE WA T RER T A B BLIE
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current S0 S0 50 o E AR R B - T O S P 45
tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities Tl s L B — LB R R )
relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority on either the JRE B T B = ] — AOBE A B BT B 2 P
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to BB B > B R A I 4 AR
settle the balances on a net basis. The offset amounts are as follows: R > BV AT 208 A28 Pr 49 B0 4 S B £ £ ELAH
HEHT - IREI BT -
2019 2018
“R—uE SR N\E
HK$’000 HK$’000
TG Tt
Deferred income tax assets 95 2 T 159 Bl A 814 870
Deferred income tax liabilities AR S iy 4 B £ AR (414,297) (430,373)
(413,483) (429,503)
The components of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) recognised PMREZFR-NE=ZA=Z+—HE=ZF
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the movements —NEZHA=Z+—HILEE - 505
during the year ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: MUK RERZIBEABRERE, (A
i) AR B BB F -
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE_F-WAE=A=Z1+—HILEE
Fair value Fair value
Accelerated change of gain on
depreciation investment  acquisition of
allowances Tax losses properties a subsidiary Total
W0 —
B¥WE WHE A2
T 4 4k BB ATHEH AVHEA Wt
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T
At 1 April 2018 B ENA—H 68 802 (420,550) (9,823) (429,503)
Charged to the consolidated statement H & 2R W bR
of comprehensive income = - (11,365) - (11,365)
Exchange difference E i 7% 4) (52) 26,806 635 27,385
At 31 March 2019 REZB=MNEEA=1—H 64 750 (405,109) (9,188) (413,483)
55 5 BRAE 1 A R A ]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

x0T FS IR R 5L (@

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # E —F—LFE=H =—1—H IFFEF

23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

23 B HE B 13 B ¥ o 2L £1 4%

(%)

BREZZ-N\FE=ZA=ZTHIEEE

Fair value Fair value
Accelerated change of gain on
depreciation investment acquisition of
allowances Tax losses properties a subsidiary Total
Wi — 1
Bym¥E i 2 7] 2
T B 8 4B A BEEH  ATFEEH  AFEERN A5t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
At 1 April 2017 RER—LENA—H = = (379,859) = (379,859)
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated statement  (#1BR H ) /RG2S
of comprehensive income 68 760 (334) = 494
Acquisition of a subsidiary W — I B A - - - (9,195) (9:199)
Exchange difference HE i, 25 4 = 42 (40,357) (628) (40,943)
At31 March 2018 REZ-NEZR=F—0 68 802 (420,550) (9,823) (429,503)
Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are as follows: AR Z A P A B AT -
2019 2018
SO ST
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
Unutilised tax losses A B = BLHE g 1E 43,510 41,305
Accelerated depreciation allowances o 38 8 4% A - 10
43,510 41,315

At 31 March 2019, the deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of
approximately HK$258,386,000 (31 March 2018: HK$241,759,000)

have not been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit

streams to utilised such losses. Unrecognised tax losses amounted to

HK$248,069,000, (31 March 2018: HK$225,113,000) has no expiry

date and certain unrecognised tax losses amounted to HK$10,317,000

(31 March 2018: HK$16,646,000) expire within five years under the

current tax legislation of the respective jurisdictions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

24 BORROWINGS

24 fi5 &%

2019 2018

ZR-JuE R )\4E

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#xL T oo

Entrusted loan (Note a) T (M 5Ea) 584,600 160,000
Bonds payable (Note b) AT A 27 (BffiED ) 13,446 -
598,046 160,000

Note

(@)

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of the Group’s borrowing
approximate to its fair value and is denominated in RMB. The borrowing
is secured by the Group’s land use right in Weihai, interest bearing at

18% per annum and repayable on 24 July 2019.

Prior to entering the Group, B ¥F B &M K & ¥H WA H
(“Weihai Runhe”) , an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into an entrusted loan agreement with a subsidiary
of China HKBridge Holdings Limited (“China HKBridge”), an
independent third party, through China Everbright Bank pursuant to
which Weihai Runhe obtained a loan in the amount of RMB150,000,000
(equivalent to HK$187,500,000) for a term loan of 2 years. The
borrowing was secured by the Group’s land use right in Weihai and
the entire share capital of Weihai Runhe, bore interest at 18% per
annum and repayable on 24 July 2019, to satisfy the obligations of the
construction project in works. On 19 January 2018, Weihai Runhe
entered into another loan agreement with the same subsidiary of China
HKBridge, pursuant to which Weihai Runhe agreed to lend an amount
of RMB22,000,000 (equivalent to HK$27,500,000) to the same
counterparty. The loan was interest bearing at 18% per annum and
repayable on 15 August 2018. Pursuant to the agreement, both parties
agreed to offset the amount borrowed with the amount lent. Hence, the
loan receivable is presented as an offsetting amount against the borrowing.
This entrusted loan has been repaid during the year ended 31 March
2019.

RoZ— ) EZA=+—H > AL
Ak 2 R T A BELH: A S R I AN R
B AL o A R DAAR 4 A it 2 - M
FHREAE DR > 45 R 2 1 8 L 5B R IR
SR -NEEA SR

DA N T NS Rl I g <
B J 2 ) v B OR B A R A
w] ([ R M AR ) 4% 8 o 1 KSR AT
Bl— 2B =07 (PR A
FRA ] (M B ) Z W8 A W) &
7 7% WE B K b o TR UL > B TR
7 7 N R 150,000,00078 (A 7Y
187,500,000 JC ) 1 B2 3k » B8 5K 4 191 24
WIAE o %A R DA A 5 A it 2 s i
JERE T B35 TP R 2 BT A e AR A 985 A
AR R RIS FT B R AR ZF— g
CHAZ+HA R DR TR
HHZHEE-R_F—N\NE—HTI
> g it 1B R B o o s A 1 ] — B
2\ R RTS8 53— Uy B K bk o IR L > B
WA 2 % — 8 F i h AR
#22,000,0007C (FH # 227,500,000 %
JG) o #% B PR AR B 21 8 B E Y
& )4 )\H 1 H B - IR
o T A By ] RN A N K IE B
KB o PR > MR B R AR T A kR
HHLHEY - RBRE_Z-NIAE=E
AEZ+—HIL4EE - ZEZRTERD

B BRERAE A PR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

NS

B %5 ¥R 2% Bfit 5F (@)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # E —F—LFE=H =—1—H IFFEF

24 BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note (Continued)

(a)

On 9 November 2018, Weihai Runhe entered into an entrusted debt
investment agreement with Asia Alliance Asset Management Co., Ltd., an
independent third party, through Harbin Bank Tianjin Branch pursuant
to which Weihai Runhe obtained a loan in the amount of RMBG660
million (equivalent to approximately HK$772 million) for a term loan
of 3 years, bearing interest at 6.6% per annum (“Asia Alliance Asset
Loan”). The borrowing was secured by the pledge of Weihai Runhe
construction-in-progress ‘Real Estate Registered Certificate” which will
be in custody by Harbin Bank Tianjin Branch and the entire share capital
of Weihai Runhe. The funding would be used for: i) construction work
of Golden Beach No. 1 Project; ii) replacement of China HKBridge
loan, and iii) replenishment of working capital of Weihai Runhe. The
final drawdown amount of this loan was RMB500 million (equivalent
to HK$584.6 million) and the remaining undrawn facility amount was
lapsed. This loan is guaranteed by Mr. Meng Jin Long, being the legal

representative of Weihai Runhe and a director of the Company.

On 28 November 2018, the Company as issuer and Head & Shoulders
Securities Limited as placing agent, among other parties, entered into
a placing agreement pursuant to which the Company to issue a 7% per
annum bonds (the “Bonds”) in an aggregate principal amount of up to
HK$100 million maturing on the second anniversary of the issue date
of the Bonds at the placing price equal to 100% of the principal amount
of the Bonds. The purpose of raising this Bonds was intended to be
used for general working capital of the Group. As at 31 March 2019,
the outstanding amount of the Bonds issued was HK$15,000,000. An
upfront commission of 11% on the principal amount of the Bonds was
paid to the placing agent and this commission was amortised to the profit
and loss throughout the entire period of the Bonds issued. Accordingly,
the unamortised commission as at 31 March 2019 was HK$1,554,000.
This bond payable is guaranteed by the largest sharcholder and a director
of the Company, Ms. Hung Man.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—LFE=H=1—HILFEZF

25 SHARE CAPITAL 25 JBeA
Share capital
Number of JBe A
shares HK$’000
WY T
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: CEEAT R B R R -
At 31 March 2017 R-F—-LHF=A=1+—H 2,860,000,000 1,309,124
Issuance of shares in relation to acquisition of i W Jii§ — [l Pi J8§ 2 W] 8547 1Bt 4y
a subsidiary (Note 18) (Fi¥5E18) 260,000,000 335,400
Issuance of shares in relation to placement TR E B AT B (B ka)
(Note a) 310,000,000 334,543
At 31 March 2018 and 2019 REZ-NFR
R -RHEZAZET—H 3,430,000,000 1,979,067
On 31 December 2017, the Company issued and allotted 310,000,000 RoE—-LEFZHA=ZT—H oM
new shares at issue price of HK$1.08 each to a subscriber pursuant AKAFH—ZBMANGT LB A =%
to a subscription agreement entered into between the Company and —LEIH =+ B Z bk AR
the subscriber dated 20 September 2017 for cash consideration of FEBEAT A B 1. 08 s UC 1) % R N B
HK$334,543,000, net of transaction costs amounted to HK$257,000. A7 BB 88310,000,000 857 ey - Bl 4R
The new shares were issued and allotted under the general mandate 81 %5334,543,000% 70 ( 841 BRAE 5 Wi AR
granted to the Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company 257,000 78 ) © B B4y CAR 48 AR 23\
on 7 September 2017 and rank equally among themselves and with the ZR LA B H BT ZBOREAER
existing shares in all respects. g ERTERZ —RARRERAT RRLE
Fe I 45 B Z [l B BAT BB A 4% 5 T 4%
A S H AL
26 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 26 B4 i a5 OB
(a) Notes supporting cash flow statement (a) Bl wER M
2019 2018
“F - ZF)N\E
HK$°000 HKS$’000
T#T T# 0
Cash and cash equivalents comprise ReERBESHMm e
Bank balances and cash on hand SRATEEM R FH B 4 140,323 43,585
B BRER A A B A ]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # E —F—LFE=H =—1—H IFFEF

26 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 26 BEeRBER (4)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) 36 B P A 2 11 IR
activities
Borrowings
i £%
HK$’000
T#T

At 1 April 2017

woF—-L4NA—H -

Changes from cash flows: e Es .
Repayment of borrowings TR R . £2_7_,5_0_0_) B
Total changes from financing cash flows F 0 I 2 Y B 4 i 5 )

A (27,500)
Other changes: Ho A5 )
Acquisition of subsidiaries e i L Jeg 2 ) 175,500
Exchange differences e 58 2= R 12,000
Total other changes Al A3 ) 48 %A 187,500

At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018

RZF-NFE=ZA=1—HR

—F-)\¥M¥x—Ha 160,000
Changes from cash flows: Blain maem) :
Proceeds from issue of bonds BAT RO TR 13,350
Drawdown of entrusted loan M Z B K 582,850
Repayment of entrusted loan 1R 2 w6 Bk (149,210)
Total changes from financing cash flows H il % 1 2R Y B4 i R A

i 44699
Other changes: FC A 52 ) -
Exchange differences [ 56 2= %A (9,040)
Finance costs LS 295%N —96
Total other changes L fth, 525 T 44 75 (8,944)

At 31 March 2019

Crown International Corporation Limited
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27 COMMITMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R

87 145 ¥k < Bid 5 (i)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

(a) Lease commitments

(@)

Operating lease commitments — where the Group is the
lessor

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group had contracted

with tenants for the following minimum lease receivables:

27 7R

() AR

(@)

AR AR — AL 75
HHA

RZF-NLE=H=+—H
;_R—)\4E=A=+—H>

7% 55 9t DA 5 K AL 5 B W
AR B P AT S A A
2019 2018
- ZFNE
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T#x THT
Not later than 1 year A 9 — 4 14,563 6,045
Later than 1 year and not later than — 4P, B AR 8@ AR
5 years 162,537 23,028
Over five years 4 3 T4 408,793 11,781
585,893 40,854

Operating lease receivables represent future aggregate
minimum lease receipts by the Group from non-cancellable
operating leases of its investment properties. Typically, leases
are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease term of nine to

fifteen years.

A8 L WO I AR R AR 4R
P A L 2 B 3 2 A T L
B B AR O Z R AR 4
T AR AR — M > AL A KR
Tk 7 ko > L I o ALY A
FIERT I

B BRERAE A PR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

x0T FS IR R 5L (@

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # E —F—LFE=H =—1—H IFFEF

27 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 27 A&YE (&)
(a) Lease commitments (Continued) (a) MERYE (&)
(ii) Operating lease commitments — where the Group is the (ii) AR BRI — A 25 B fF %
lessee AR
At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group had commitments RoZFE-NE=ZA=+—H
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented E_Z-NFE=ZA=Z+—
premises, which fall due as follows: H > 2% 48 8 M 38 R o] fi 8

o AT AW
XAt ZHBEYEZ RS

mF
2019 2018
—E-hiE F NS
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T
Not later than 1 year A —AE 6,975 5,994
Later than 1 year and not later than —4E D) AHOR 0 AR
5 years 7,199 10,060
14,174 16,054
(b) Capital commitments (b) % AR5
As at 31 March 2019, the Group has capital expenditure R-F-NWE=ZHA=Z+—H &
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial LEN A B HREPRETRD
statements in the amount of HK$179,256,000 in respect AT A E R A E AP X S
of the construction of the properties (31 March 2018: 179,256,000¥ 70 ( =& — \4F=H
HK$192,717,000). =+—H:192,717,000#C) °
2019 2018
“R-uE RN\
HKS$’000 HK$'000
T#L AR
Construction of properties jEyES 179,256 192,717
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 BH Bk 05 2 B
The following transactions were carried out with related parties during Ay BB I O HEAT 2 2 B A F o
the year.
Key management compensation 2 WA DI el 4
Key management includes directors and senior management. The TG B B9 o e A B o
compensation paid or payable to key management for employee 11 B Es A s B A T2 2248 P g 2 il 4
services is shown below: FIRF
2019 2018
SR SN
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T Tt
Directors’ fee EHEMAE 5,287 3,822
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits S 4 S At e 31 R B A R - 120
Pension costs — MPF IR A BRAS — i ] e A i 4 32 18
5,319 3,960
29 PLEDGE OF ASSETS 29 B
As at 31 March 2019, the following items were used to secure loan BB NEZH=1+—H > sl b
facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in Note 24(a): 24) N5 > THIKE TR ERZT
AR R R R A
(i) Pledge of the construction-in-progress “Real Estate Registered () EIEEEAR R TR TR
Certificate” held by Weihai Runhe. B B ATl Wl J o
(ii) Pledge of the entire share capital RMB425,620,000 of Weihai (i) B9 B0 T R Y A B B AR N R
Runhe. 425,620,0007C °
As at 31 March 2018, the following items were used to secure loan RFE—)EZH=+—H o gl i si
facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in Note 24(a): 24 P > THISHE T R EHRZT
A A 1Y) Bk b
(i) Pledge of the land use rights of the Weihai property project held () L 3 R BT Ry B Y 3 EH B
by Weihai Runhe. 1y - b s P RE o
(ii) Pledge of the entire share capital of RMB425,620,000 of Weihai (i) B39 B0 TP R Y 4 B B AR N R
Runhe. 425,620,0007C °
55 5 BRAE 1 A R A ]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#7 B B 5 R R Bt 5 )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #%F —~F—JL4E=H =1 —H ILFE K&

30 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

30 7 2 vl 2 W B IR 0L e K

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

i 5% B)

COMPANY
2019 2018
N ZF - )\4E
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 3 T# T Tt
Assets A
Non-current assets It By
Investments in subsidiaries T B g A\ 2 B E 46,338 86
46,338 86
Current assets Ui Y
Other receivables, prepayments and A 8 Wik I - A AR
deposits % 4 309 315
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE WL B Je A ] K JE 1,476,729 1,523,989
Cash and cash equivalents Bl& B &%5EY 142 5,472
1,477,180 1,529,776
Total assets B A A | _115_2_3_,5_1_8 ______ 1_,5_2_9_,556_2_ B
Equity B 2
Capital and reserves A B Ak A
Share capital Jie A< 1,979,067 1,979,067
Accumulated losses HEtEHE (a) (472,436) (452,269)
Total equity B 2 AR 1,506,631 1,526,798
Current liabilities i £ 4%
Other payables and accruals At JRE A 2k T e M it L £ 3,355 2,978
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE A B JiEg 2 ] ek JE 86 86
3,441 3,064
Non-current liabilities FER B £ 4%
Borrowings 5 & 13,446 =
Total liabilities fiprew 16,887 3,064
Total equity and liabilities i 2% Be £ 4% B3 B 1,523,518 1,529,862

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of

Directors on 27 June 2019 and was signed on its behalf

Ms. HUNG Man

AAFZEEABEREFAR %
—JUEAA B E - TFHIA
EREEHETEE

Mr. MENG Jin Long

38 g n . A S A
Chairman Executive Director
FH H 17 # FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
eI T EA R )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # £ —F—NLFE=H=—1—HILF&

30 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 30 A ) 2 B8R U 3% B bk
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE fii s 8 (&)
COMPANY (Continued)

(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) 72wl 22 fi i 52 )
Accumulated
losses
Y
HK$’000
TH#oo
At 1 April 2017 BRoF—-tLFENMA—H (739,950)
Profit for the year AR 1A i F) 287,681
At 31 March 2018 W_B-NFE=ZH=+—H (452,269)
Loss for the year FENEHE (20,167)
At 31 March 2019 RoBR-NWE=ZA=Z+—H (472,436)
31 EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 31 WL EE
On 8 April 2019, the Company received a sum of HK$40,500,000, R F—JEMNH)NH KA KEF
being proceeds on the further issue of Bonds. Following this 40,500,000 7C - A — B BT EF
issue, the aggregate amount of the outstanding bonds issued was BEakE - IR BT OB TR R B IR
HK$55,500,000. 15 23 $H HH 25 55,500,000 % JT
55 5 BRAE 1 A R A ]
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Financial Summary

871 5 1l 2

The following is a summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the A 55 T 7 dp e LA W B P 2 o S A M ke

last five financial periods. mE e
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
ZE-HE ZF-NE ZZ2-tE 22 0\E  ZZ-OuE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Tt T SR T8 T
Revenue W 28 3,632 3,514 12,024 4,995 5,371
Profit before income tax Wik e 45 A i ¥ A 161,209 218,764 123,300 109,610 14,765
Income tax expense Fir 4586 B 3 (6,415) (46,498) (41,960) (895) (10,974)
Profit for the year A 1 1 A 154,794 172,266 81,340 108,715 3,791

Profit attributable to owners of N/NEIE XN
the Company JE A i 71 155,067 172,266 81,179 108,716 3,791

The following is a summary of the total assets and liabilities of the Group AREEP R IE RS R

and equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31 March 2015, —tH ZF2-NERZZ-NLE=Z]
2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019. E=t—HZEEAE - BB RN
B NEAGRERS M T o

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

“ER-nfE RN ZFR-EE Z2R-N\E . ZFOE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

T#x T#x T#T T#T T#x

Total assets jgid 8 2,400,427 1,962,452 1,984,419 2,864,473 3,270,544
Total liabilities A (1,634,330) (748,941) (768,836) (702,044)  (1,242,723)

Total equity HE 2 4 766,097 1,213,511 1,215,583 2,162,429 2,027,821

Equity attributable to owners of EN/NE DN
the Company JEAW HEE 5 766,097 1,213,511 1,215,430 2,162,269 2,027,821

Crown International Corporation Limited
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